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2022
19,131,182 66.02
1,542,936 5.32
1,305,623 4.51
1,169,373 4.04
1,033,868 3.57
769,814 2.66
645,535 2.23
488,760 1.69
348,810 1.20
287,147 0.99
264,441 0.91
260,204 0.90
249,617 0.86
194,200 0.67
167,455 0.58
161,644 0.56
107,409 0.37
98,717 0.34
162,889 0.56
46,121 0.16
28,435,743 98.13
542,339 1.87
3?31278’082 100.00

41/212



EDINETOOOO

OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(2022
FORD MOTOR CRED 3.250 | 2025/9/15 460,000 | 542,478 | 483,780 | 1.67
MOZART DEBT ME 5.250 | 2029/10/1 430,000 | 422,747 | 379,750 | 1.31
TEVA PHARM FNC 4.500 | 2025/3/1 300,000 | 333,187 | 321,000 | 1.11
STANDARD INDS IN 3.375 | 2031/1/15 381,000 [ 359,527 | 320,397 [ 1.11
CONSTELL IUME SE 3.125 | 2029/7/15 350,000 | 425,075 | 319,293 | 1.10
NGL EN OP/FIN 7.500 [ 2026/2/1 317,000 [ 317,000 | 297,728 | 1.03
SCHAEFFLER AG 3.375 | 2028710712 | 300,000 | 396,738 | 295,518 | 1.02
HADRIAN MERGER 8.500 [ 2026/5/1 283,000 | 260,681 | 276,767 | 0.96
CARGO AIRCRAFT M 4.750 | 2028/2/1 276,000 | 277,122 | 268,403 | 0.93
10 [ GRAY TELE INC 4.750 | 2030/10/15 [ 301,000 [ 303,416 | 268,283 | 0.93
11 | FULL HOUSE RESORT 8.250 | 2028/2/15 282,000 | 288,197 | 255,730 | 0.88
12 | ALTICE FRANCE 5.125 | 2029/7/15 286,000 | 286,000 | 250,193 | 0.86
13 | TDC NET AS 5.056 | 2028/5/31 230,000 | 246,721 | 249,617 | 0.86
14 | SUNOCO LP/FIN 4.500 | 2030/4/30 272,000 | 263,811 | 248,297 | 0.86
15 [ DIAMOND BC BV 4.625 | 2029/10/1 291,000 | 278,108 | 247,890 | 0.86
16 [ TWITTER INC 5.000 | 2030/3/1 245,000 | 239,796 | 243,470 | 0.84
17 [ ENQUEST PLC 7.000 | 2022710715 | 251,371 | 251,371 | 242,262 | 0.84
18| 11-VI INC 5.000 | 2029/12/15 | 252,000 | 248,289 | 238,458 | 0.82
19 | FORD MOTOR CRED 3.625 | 2031/6/17 274,000 | 274,000 | 237,407 | 0.82
20 [ PINNANCLE BIDCO P 6.375 | 2025/2/15 200,000 | 229,908 | 237,300 | 0.82
21 | voLvo CAR AB 4.250 | 2028/5/31 220,000 | 234,467 | 236,179 | 0.82
22| z1660 5.125 | 2030/2/28 263,000 | 265,672 | 233,988 | 0.81
23| VICTORIA PLC 3.750 | 2028/3/15 260,000 | 308,984 | 233,349 | 0.81
24 | PCF GMBH 4.750 | 2026/4/15 240,000 | 287,280 | 228,830 | 0.79
25 | SPRINGLEAF FIN 5.375 | 2029/11/15 | 244,000 | 228,579 | 226,838 | 0.78
26 | ALLIED UNIVERSAL 3.625 | 2028/6/1 250,000 | 300,125 | 222,001 | 0.77
27 | DT MIDSTREAM 4.125 | 2029/6/15 234,000 | 234,000 | 219,129 | 0.76
28 | WATCO COS LLC/FI 6.500 | 2027/6/15 230,000 | 227,108 | 218,808 | 0.76
29 [ WYNDHAM INC 6.625 | 2026/7/31 212,000 | 221,563 | 218,676 | 0.75
30 [ NETFLIX INC 3.625 | 2027/5/15 200,000 | 232,167 | 213,560 | 0.74
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2022
2013 o 9,792,913 | 1,255,549,376 118.15 15,148
(2014 a1 23,144,502 | 2,967,356,601 125.45 16,084
2015 a1 21,277,278 | 2.727,959,812 127.19 16,307
2016 o 9,869,910 | 1,265,421,161 122.58 15,716
@017 a1 9,407,131 | 1,206,088,266 138.44 17,749
2018 a1 10,205,790 | 1,308,484,336 145.28 18,626
2019 o 6,992,435 896,500,001 143.79 18,435
(2020 a1 6,099,557 782,024,203 159.67 20,471
(20;2 a1 5,002,481 652,906,989 160.93 20,633
20;; a1 4,916,824 630,386,005 161.31 20,682
2021 5,136,734 658,580,666 165.71 21,246
5,251,777 673,330,329 166.33 21,325

5,273,787 676,152,231 167.03 21,415

5,168,464 662,648,769 166.49 21,346

10 5,146,716 659,860,458 165.39 21,205

11 5,084,181 651,842,846 163.38 20,947

12 5,074,351 650,582,542 166.48 21,344

2022 4,916,824 630,386,005 161.31 20,682
4,821,025 618,103,615 157.96 20,252

4,708,616 603,691,657 156.32 20,042

3,044,585 505,735,243 150.32 19,273

3,892,750 499,089,478 148.35 19,020
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(2013 31 ) 84,846,576 | 10,878,179,509 79.48 10,190
(2014 31 ) 86,633,356 | 11,107,262,573 56.07 7,189
(2015 31 ) 64,644,688 8,288,095,448 40.37 5,176
(2016 31 ) 31,066,828 3,983,078,018 20.50 2,628
(2017 31 ) 41,614,154 5,335,350,684 27.36 3,508
(2018 31 ) 23,776,104 3,048,334,294 26.69 3,422
(2019 31 ) 14,324,094 1,836,492,092 20.00 2,564
(2020 31 ) 10,515,051 1,348,134,689 15.86 2,033
10
(2021 31 ) 6,483,639 831,267,356 10.74 1,377
11

2022 31 5,295,153 678,891,566 10.32 1,323
2021 6,527,818 836,931,546 11.58 1,485
6,348,486 813,939,390 11.27 1,445

6,292,514 806,763,220 11.32 1,451

5,844,180 749,282,318 10.55 1,353

10 5,495,137 704,531,515 10.07 1,291

11 5,392,077 691,318,192 9.90 1,269

12 5,468,972 701,176,900 10.18 1,305

2022 5,295,153 678,891,566 10.32 1,323
5,342,748 684,993,721 10.40 1,333

5,702,131 731,070,216 11.03 1,414

5,091,146 652,735,829 10.05 1,289

5,331,463 683,546,871 10.74 1,377
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(2013 31 ) 24,605,099 3,154,619,743 93.92 12,041
(2014 31 ) 28,886,284 3,703,510,472 74.16 9,508
(2015 31 ) 22,846,037 2,929,090,404 62.42 8,003
(2016 31 ) 9,937,453 1,274,080,849 39.38 5,049
(2017 31 ) 10,774,351 1,381,379,542 46.83 6,004
(2018 31 ) 10,929,376 1,401,255,297 46.83 6,004
(2019 31 ) 8,577,723 1,099,749,866 35.01 4,489
(2020 31 ) 6,174,194 791,593,413 27.88 3,574
10
(2021 31 ) 2,320,966 297,571,051 23.26 2,982
11

2022 31 1,539,834 197,422,117 21.05 2,699
2021 2,196,185 281,572,879 24.10 3,090
2,139,606 274,318,885 23.48 3,010

2,138,399 274,164,136 23.53 3,017

2,038,258 261,325,058 22.43 2,876

10 1,955,343 250,694,526 22.11 2,835

11 1,613,459 206,861,578 20.92 2,682

12 1,631,247 209,142,178 21.46 2,751

2022 1,539,834 197,422,117 21.05 2,699
1,528,293 195,942,446 20.93 2,683

1,586,172 203,363,112 21.80 2,795

2,276,049 291,812,242 23.58 3,023

1,428,395 183,134,523 19.91 2,553
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(2013 31 174,908,795 | 16,082,863,700 105.79 9,727
(2014 31 264,203,888 | 24,293,547,502 102.52 9,427
(2015 31 298,385,862 | 27,436,580,011 94.30 8,671
(2016 31 157,952,934 | 14,523,772,281 81.04 7,452
(2017 31 141,516,180 | 13,012,412,751 79.87 7,344
(2018 31 116,274,709 | 10,691,459,493 72.14 6,633
(2019 31 80,235,438 7,377,648,524 59.08 5,432
(2020 31 68,632,274 6,310,737,594 52.45 4,823
(20;2 31 48,456,914 4,455,613,242 44.00 4,046
20;; 31 30,651,460 2,818,401,747 38.05 3,499
2021 42,378,150 3,896,670,893 42.69 3,925
41,466,285 3,812,824,906 42.35 3,894

40,273,217 3,703,122,303 42.00 3,862

36,826,739 3,386,218,651 41.36 3,803

10 34,040,283 3,130,004,022 40.59 3,732

11 32,853,532 3,020,882,267 39.57 3,638

12 32,704,649 3,007,192,476 39.80 3,660

2022 30,651,460 2,818,401,747 38.05 3,499
29,474,482 2,710,178,620 36.76 3,380

28,318,882 2,603,921,200 35.89 3,300

26,481,451 2,434,969,419 34.20 3,145

25,544,292 2,348,797,649 33.54 3,084
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2022 2022
18.60 2,385
18.60 2,385
17.55 2,250
10.20 1,308
4.20 538
3.60 462
3.60 462
3.60 462
10 1.80 231
11 1.20 154
2022 0.10 13
0.10 13
0.03 4
0.03 4
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12.00 1,539

12.00 1,539

12.00 1,539

11.40 1,462

7.60 974

7.20 923

7.20 923

7.20 923

10 3.60 462
11 2.40 308
2022 0.20 26
0.20 26

0.10 13

0.10 13
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12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

12.00 1,103

10 7.50 690
11 6.00 552
2022 0.50 46
0.50 46

0.20 18

0.20 18
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83,891 46,800 82,884
83,891 46,800 82,884
152,826 51,218 184,492
152,826 51,218 184,492
79,839 97,043 167,288
(79,839) (97,043) (167,288)
1,705 88,478 80,515
(1,705) (88,478) (80,515)
15,575 28,139 67,951
(15,575) (28,139) (67,951)
18,026 15,726 70,251
(18,026) (15,726) (70,251)
990 22,613 48,628
(990) (22,613) (48,628)
780 11,207 38,201
(780) (11,207) (38,201)
169 6,726 31,644
(169) (6.726) (31,644)
1,815 2,978 30,481
(1,815) (2,978) (30,481)
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722,147 359,497 1,067,477
722,147 359,497 1,067,477
820,449 342,710 1,545,216
820,449 342,710 1,545,216
499,795 443,798 1,601,213

(499,795) (443,798) (1,601,213)
240,258 325,943 1,515,528

(240, 258) (325,943) (1,515,528)
391,819 386,546 1,520,801

(391,819) (386,546) (1,520,801)
133,309 763,230 890,880

(133,309) (763,230) (890, 880)

5,040 179,750 716,170
(5,040) (179,750) (716,170)
3,801 57,052 662,919
(3,801) (57,052) (662,919)

0 59,282 603,637
0) (59,282) (603,637)
0 90,789 512,848
(0) (90,789) (512,848)
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198,337 169,959 261,979
198,337 169,959 261,979
236,846 109,288 389,537
236,846 109,288 389,537
80,512 104,052 365,997
(80,512) (104,052) (365,997)
15,285 128,916 252,366
(15,285) (128,916) (252, 366)
59,015 81,283 230,008
(59,015) (81,283) (230,098)
43,095 39,803 233,390
(43,095) (39,803) (233,390)
57,790 46,180 245,000
(57,790) (46,180) (245,000)
0 23,558 221,442
(0) (23,558) (221,442)
4,880 126,547 99,775
(4,880) (126,547) (99,775)
0 26,641 73,134
(0) (26,641) (73,134)
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1,776,422 1,150,980 1,653,389
1,776,422 1,150,980 1,653,389

1,836,246 912,454 2,577,181

1,836,246 912,454 2,577,181

1,671,181 1,083,968 3,164,394

(1,671,181) (1,083,968) (3.164,394)

138,772 1,354,284 1,948,882

(138,772) (1,354,284) (1,948,882)

293,003 470,317 1,771,658

(293,093) (470,317) (1,771,658)

411,754 571,734 1,611,678

(411,754) (571,734) (1,611,678)

51,948 305,515 1,358,111

(51,948) (305,515) (1,358,111)

89,228 138,708 1,308,631

(89,228) (138,708) (1,308,631)

10 9,770 217,219 1,101,182

(9,770) (217,219) (1,101,182)
1 4,450 300,000 805,632
(4,450) (300,000) (805, 632)
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FRA

FRA

fundinquiries mizuhogroup.com

DPA
DPA

DPA

DPA
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1,000 3.3 3.0
1,000 10,000 2.2 2.0
10,000 30,000 1.1 1.0

30,000 0.275 0.25
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
3,932,247 504,153
240,000 30,770
32,631,208 4,183,647 61,195,346 7,845,855
1,464,934 187,819 193,284 24,781
458,056 58,727 800,652 102,652
611,404 78,388 526,507 67,503
1,850 237
35,165,602 4,508,582 66,889,886 8,575,952
380,173 48,742 1,989,949 255,131
1,160,217 148,751 1,140,435 146,215
60,029 7,696
69,681 8,934 142,078 18,216
45,922 5,888 66,337 8,505
9,847 1,262 11,431 1,466
18,009 2,309 26,015 3,335
67,000 8,590 75,000 9,616
1,351 173 2,424 311
3,781 485 3,215 412
762 98 42,323 5,426
1,816,772 232,928 3,499,207 448,633
33,348,830 4,275,653 63,390,679 8,127,319
35,165,602 4,508,582 66,889,886 8,575,952
2022 15
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
2,271,739 291,260 3,695,787 473,837
(4,240,184) (543,634) 1,224,351 156,974
1,251,868 160,502 1,624,274 208,248
(2,439,156) (312,724) (2,110,090) (270,535)
2,650,374 339,804 (3,430,102) (439,773)
9,558 1,225 13,898 1,782
39,430 5,055 (1,264) (162)
(456,371) (58,511) 1,016,854 130,371
363,230 46,570 496,303 63,631
220,425 28,261 268,869 34,472
47,681 6,113 54,427 6,978
34,504 4,424 40,308 5,168
86,441 11,083 105,439 13,518
23,919 3,067 14,203 1,821
55,508 7,117 71,081 9,113
68,126 8,734 179,416 23,003
899,834 115,368 1,230,046 157,704
(1,356,205) (173,879) (213,192) (27,333)
(5,632,400) (722,130)  (10,011,725) (1,283,603)
(3.250) 417) (18,859) (2,418)
(6,991, 855) (896,426)  (10,243,776) (1,313,355)
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2022 31

85,505,018 10,962,598

463,680 59,448
(12,334,243) (1,581,373)
(10,243,776) (1,313,355)
63,390,679 8,127,319

486,796 62,412
(23,536,790) (3,017,652)
(6,991,855) (896,426)
33,348,830 4,275,653
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2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
(6,991, 855) (896,426)  (10,243,776) (1,313,355)
5,632,400 722,130 10,011,725 1,283,603
(2,650,374) (339,804) 3,430,102 439,773
4,240,184 543,634 (1,224,351) (156,974)
(1,251,868) (160,502) (1,624,274) (208, 248)
(7.893) (1,012) (23,684) (3,037)
240,000 30,770 650,000 83,337
342,596 43,924 272,137 34,891
1,850 237 (1,850) (237)
60,029 7,696
(72,397) (9,282) (19,036) (2,441)
(20,415) (2,617) (26,888) (3,447)
(8,006) (1,026) (10,544) (1,352)
(1,584) (203) (5,243) (672)
(8,000) (1,026) 1,000 128
566 73 944 121
(1,073) (138) (983) (126)
(41,562) (5,329) 41,568 5,329
(537,402) (68,900) 1,226,847 157,294
(49,051,544) (6,288,898)  (96,920,973)  (12,426,238)
74,339,093 9,531,015 116,663,004 14,957,364
25,287,549 3,242,117 19,742,031 2,531,126
486,796 62,412 463,680 59,448
(23,536,790) (3,017,652)  (12,334,243) (1,581,373)
(5,632,400) (722,130)  (10,011,725) (1,283,603)
(28,682,394) (3,677,370)  (21,882,288) (2,805,528)
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2022 31 2021 31
(3,932,247) (504,153) (913,410) (117,108)
3,932,247 504,153 4,845,657 621,262

3,932,247 504,153
2,902,870 372,177 3,967,924 508,728
3,250 417 18,859 2,418
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2022 31

2011 29
2011 29
2011 15
1107 694 25

2011
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2022 31
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2011

0.51
2011 29

0.01

3,750 30

2011

0.08
11,250
2011
0.755
0.47
2011
0.015

2011
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2011 29

0.01 3,750

2022 31 2021 31

2,263,846 3,672,101

77,198 175,468

(69, 305) (151,782)

2,271,739 3,605,787
2022 31 2021 31

4,353,039 6,341,043

168,727 781,138

132,926 722,575

79,533 350,029

680,351 1,166,844

217,824 650,096

5,632,400 10,011,725
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HYUSDUSD
HYUSDBRL
HYUSDBS1
HYAUDAUD
HYJPYJPY
HYJPYBS1
HYJPYBRL
10,000
2022 31
HYAUDAUD 1,101,182 4,450 (300,000) 805,632 38.05
HYJPYBRL 301,563 4,284 (305,847)
HYJPYBS1 192,947 (192,947)
HYJPYJPY 72,168 (72,168)
HYUSDBRL 603,637 (90,789) 512,848 10.32
HYUSDBS1 99,775 (26,641) 73,134 21.05
HYUSDUSD 31,644 1,815 (2,978) 30,481 161.31
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2021 31
HYAUDAUD 1,308,631 9,770 (217,219) 1,101,182 44.00
HYJPYBRL 320,363 (18,800) 301,563 1,135.63
HYJPYBS1 219,374 4,373 (30,800) 192,947 2,287.08
HYJPYJPY 81,868 (9,700) 72,168 7,001.97
HYUSDBRL 662,919 (59,282) 603,637 10.74
HYUSDBS1 221,442 4,880 (126,547) 99,775 23.26
HYUSDUSD 38,201 169 (6,726) 31,644 160.93
2022 31 2021
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2022 31
2022 31
10 3,263,121 2021 6,119,535
2022 31 10
3,263,121 2021 6,119,535
2022 31
2022 31
100
2022 31
2022 31 2021 31
10 * 10 *
(31,496) (3,150) 10,958 1,096
(234,448) (23,445) 440,086 44,009
(265,944) 451,044
* 2022 31 10
2022 31 10
10
*
2,285,036
46,587
514,762
2021 31 10
10
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2022

2021

31

31

31

100

438,227

3,911,164

203,014

1,101,732

10 10
240,067 6,955,070 22,859,860 2,367,621 208,590 32,631,208
843,684 22,495,737 36,249,164 1,606,761 61,195,346
100
3,127,160 2021 6,572,256
5,008,817 2021 5,677,134
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2022 31 2021 31
459,421 1.41 439,816 0.72
421,094 1.29 1,487,102 2.43
5,970,176 18.30 6,873,224 11.23
3,484,834 10.68 5,443,657 8.90
4,392,908 13.46 10,988,107 17.96
2,427,484 7.44 5,228,266 8.54
5,924,514 18.16 8,552,661 13.98
2,786,127 8.54 7,331,352 11.98
4,139,996 12.68 7,254,315 11.85
1,831,451 5.61 3,519,369 5.75
0.00 852,624 1.39
344,944 1.06 2,338,006 3.82
32,182,949 98.63 60,308,499 98.54
0.00 475,347 0.78
0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00
239,669 0.73 411,500 0.67
239,669 0.73 886,847 1.46
208,590 0.64 0.00
208,590 0.64
32,631,208 100.00 61,195,346 100.00

2021

12
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2022 2021 31 90

2022 2021 31

1970
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13

2022 31
208,590 208,590
32,182,949 32,182,949
239,669 239,669
1,464,934 1,464,934
208,590 33,887,552 34,096,142
1,160,217 1,160,217
1,160,217 1,160,217

2021 31
60,308,499 60,308,499
886,847 886,847
193,284 193,284
61,388,630 61,388,630
1,140,435 1,140,435
1,140,435 1,140,435

2022 2021 31
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2022 2021 31
30

2022
1,464,934 1,464,934
1,464,934

2021
193,284 193,284
193,284
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® D iy
2022
225 225
109,646 1,108 108,538
6,122 6,122
2,189 327 1,862
5,628 4,739 889
1,341,124 1,139,549 201,575
1,464,934 1,152,070 312,864
® G iy
2021
32,259 32,259
10,402 10,402
32,331 19,270 13,061
a1 411
5,002 5,002
19,915 19,915
92,964 92,964
193,284 54,589 138,695
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2022
1,160,217 1,160,217
1,160,217
2021
1,140,435 1,140,435
1,140,435
0] (DR
2022
6,513 225 6,288
1,174 1,174
1,108 1,108
6,807 6,122 685
327 327
4,739 4,739
1,139,549 1,139,549
1,160,217 1,152,070 8,147
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® G) iy
2021

87,182 10,402 76,780

19,270 19,270
818,057 5,002 240,000 573,055
56,597 19,915 36,682
100 100
41,036 41,036
10 118,193 118,193
1,140,435 54,589 240,000 845,846

O] i)
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2,308,596
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2022 31

3,950 BECTON DICKINSON AND 6.000% 06/01/23 B 212,159 208,590 0.63
212,159 208,590 0.63

57,000 AIR TRANSPORT SE 1.125% 10/15/24 62,426 61,369 0.18
200,000 XERO INVMNTS LTD 12/02/25 199,643 178,300 0.54
262,069 239,669 0.72

54,000 ABC SUPPLY CO 4.000% 01/15/28 144A 53,596 52,958 0.16
100,000 AIR FRANCE-KLM 3.000% 07/01/24 118,849 111,186 0.33
220,000 ALBERTSONS COS 4.625% 01/15/27 144A 216,642 225,488 0.68
158,000 ALBERTSONS COS 4.875% 02/15/30 144A 161,554 161,330 0.48
204,000 ALLEGHENY TECH 5.125% 10/01/31 203,923 199,242 0.60
250,000 ALLIED UNIVERSAL 3.625% 06/01/28 REgs 300,125 264,435 0.79
100,000 ALLIED UNIVERSAL 4.875% 06/01/28 rEGS 139,100 125,663 0.38
200,000 ALTICE FRANCE 10.500% 05/15/27 REG 201,877 212,246 0.64
286,000 ALTICE FRANCE 5.125% 07/15/29 144A 286,000 264,938 0.79
205,000 ALTICE FRANCE 5.500% 10/15/29 144A 205,000 194,283 0.58
220,000 AMERICAN AIRLINE 5.500% 04/20/26 220,000 224,950 0.67
163,000 AMERICAN AIRLINE 5.750% 04/20/29 163,000 167,150 0.50
104,000 ANTERO RESOURCES 7.625% 02/01/29 144A 105,644 113,463 0.34
129,000 APACHE CORP 4.250% 01/15/30 116,573 130,740 0.39
150,000 API GROUP DE INC 4.125% 07/15/29 144A 150,000 144,597 0.43
70,000 ARCHROCK LP/FIN 6.875% 04/01/27 144A 73,498 71,896 0.22
167,000 ARCONIC ROLLED P 6.125% 02/15/28 144A 168,324 173,510 0.52
200,000 ARD FINANCE SA 06/30/27 REGS 225,388 226,843 0.68
48,000 ATKORE INC 4.250% 06/01/31 144A 48,000 47,322 0.14
168,000 AUSTIN BIDCO INC 7.125% 12/15/28 144A 171,646 170,853 0.51
304,000 BAUSCH HEALTH 5.000% 01/30/28 144A 296,272 257,692 0.77
73,000 BAUSCH HEALTH 5.000% 02/15/29 144A 73,000 59,021 0.18
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300,000 BCP V MODULAR 6.750% 11/30/29 REGs 346,830 312,633 0.94
143,000 BEACON ROOFING S 4.125% 05/15/29 144A 141,284 136,573 0.41
83,000 BLOOMIN® BRANDS 5.125% 04/15/29 144A 84,430 82,309 0.25
135,000 BUILDERS FIRSTSO 4.250% 02/01/32 JAN 135,673 132,382 0.40
42,000 CANO HEALTH LLC 6.250% 10/01/28 144A 40,813 40,370 0.12
259,000 CARGO AIRCRAFT M 4.750% 02/01/28 144A 261,787 261,047 0.78
178,000 CARNIVAL CORP 7.625% 03/01/26 144A 180,103 181,882 0.55
159,000 CARROLS RESTAURA 5.875% 07/01/29 144A 154,283 136,935 0.41
178,000 CARVANA CO 5.500% 04/15/27 144A 179,505 165,611 0.50
200,000 CELLNEX FINANCE 3.875% 07/07/41 144A 197,448 185,450 0.56
73,000 CENTURY COMMUNIT 3.875% 08/15/29 144A 73,000 70,016 0.21
90,000 CHARLES SCHWAB FXtoVA PERP I 90,310 89,026 0.27
100,000 CHS/COMMUNITY 5.250% 05/15/30 144A 100,000 99,597 0.30
262,000 CHS/COMMUNITY 6.875% 04/15/29 144A 266,375 259,466 0.78
43,000 CIENA CORP 4.000% 01/31/30 144A 43,000 42,638 0.13
138,000 COINBASE GLOBAL 3.375% 10/01/28 144A 136,282 123,752 0.37
117,000 COINBASE GLOBAL 3.625% 10/01/31 144A 115,867 101,867 0.31
146,000 COMPASS GRP LLC 5.250% 04/15/29 144A 146,000 144,378 0.43
68,000 COMPASS MIN INTL 6.750% 12/01/27 144A 71,386 71,313 0.21
182,000 CONSOLIDATED COM 5.000% 10/01/28 144A 182,649 176,625 0.53
350,000 CONSTELLIUM SE 3.125% 07/15/29 REGS 425,075 372,008 1.12
354,000 CORELOGIC INC 4.500% 05/01/28 144A 353,550 339,734 1.02
133,000 COVERT MERGECO 4.875% 12/01/29 144A 134,093 132,775 0.40
95,000 CP ATLAS BUYER 7.000% 12/01/28 144A 94,795 90,493 0.27
300,000 CPI PROPERTY GRO FXtoVA PERP 357,858 305,597 0.92
200,000 CPI PROPERTY GRO FXtoVA PERP . 230,063 222,731 0.67
200,000 CSC HOLDINGS LLC 4.625% 12/01/30 144a 187,924 178,032 0.53
91,000 CTR PARTNERSHIP 3.875% 06/30/28 144A 91,268 90,226 0.27
175,000 DAVITA INC 3.750% 02/15/31 144A 168,764 161,085 0.48
137,000 DIAMOND BC BV 4.625% 10/01/29 144A 135,748 129,534 0.39
300,000 DIC ASSET AG 2.250% 09/22/26 352,620 315,293 0.95
99,000 DISH DBS CORP 5.125% 06/01/29 92,230 86,518 0.26
195,000 DORNOCH DEBT MER 6.625% 10/15/29 144A 195,000 188,419 0.56
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234,000 DT MIDSTREAM 4.125% 06/15/29 144A 234,000 231,486 0.69
138,000 DT MIDSTREAM 4.375% 06/15/31 144A 138,000 136,340 0.41
58,000 EMBECTA CORP 5.000% 02/15/30 144A 58,000 58,101 0.17
204,000 ENDURANCE ACQUIS 6.000% 02/15/29 144A 195,478 181,855 0.55
313,000 ENLINK MIDSTREA 4.15% 06/01/25 289,717 312,566 0.94
171,000 ENLINK MIDSTREA 5.625% 01/15/28 144A 171,000 176,498 0.53
251,371 ENQUEST PLC 04/15/22 EMTN (PIK) 248,010 240,067 0.72
90,000 EQM MIDSTREAM PT 4.750% 01/15/31 144A 93,285 86,296 0.26
200,000 FAURECIA 2.750% 02/15/27 231,700 223,466 0.67
133,000 FERTITTA ENT LLC 6.750% 01/15/30 144A 133,000 129,395 0.39
100,000 FIDEL CIA SEGURO FXtoVA 09/04/31 114,525 117,638 0.35
77,000 FMG RES AUG 2006 4.375% 04/01/31 144A 80,166 77,623 0.23
81,000 FORD MOTOR COMPANY 4.75% 1/15/43 84,297 82,841 0.25
460,000 FORD MOTOR CRED 3.250% 09/15/25 EMTN 542,478 545,924 1.64
184,000 FRONT RANGE BIDC 6.125% 03/01/28 144A 186,594 174,301 0.52
74,000 FRST STU BIDCO 4.000% 07/31/29 144A 72,411 70,222 0.21
282,000 FULL HOUSE RESOR 8.250% 02/15/28 144A 288,464 289,466 0.87
95,000 GARDA SECURITY 4.625% 02/15/27 144A 94,626 92,870 0.28
105,000 GARDA SECURITY 6.000% 06/01/29 144A 102,736 98,303 0.29
190,000 GCI LLC 4.750% 10/15/28 144A 190,033 188,097 0.56
162,000 GEN MOTORS FIN FXtoFL PERP A 125,340 171,364 0.51
211,000 GLOBAL NET LEASE 3.750% 12/15/27 144A 211,000 203,060 0.61
60,000 GO DADDY OP/FIN 3.500% 03/01/29 144A 58,742 55,937 0.17
114,000 GOODYEAR TIRE 5.250% 04/30/31 114,000 115,180 0.35
76,000 GRAY ESCROW Il 5.375% 11/15/31 144A 76,000 75,024 0.22
301,000 GRAY TELE INC 4.750% 10/15/30 144A 303,458 288,853 0.87
245,000 GRT WRN PTRL 12.000% 09/01/25 144 239,877 256,990 0.77
283,000 HADRIAN MERGER 8.500% 05/01/26 144A 259,221 288,667 0.87
300,000 HEIMSTADEN 4.375% 03/06/27 353,893 332,688 1.00
180,000 HEIMSTADEN BOSTA FXtoVA PERP 216,807 184,842 0.55
200,000 HERENS HOLDCO S 4.750% 05/15/28 144A 200,000 191,411 0.57
170,000 HERENS MIDCO 5.250% 05/15/29 REGS 204,646 173,063 0.52
77,000 HESS MIDSTREAM 4.250% 02/15/30 144A 77,000 74,459 0.22
132,000 HESS MIDSTREAM P 5.125% 06/15/28 144A 123,313 134,645 0.40
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232,000 HLF FIN SARL LLC 4.875% 06/01/29 144A 232,297 220,149 0.66
100,000 HOUSE OF HR 7.500% 01/15/27 REGS 122,910 117,173 0.35
107,000 HOWARD MIDSTREAM 6.750% 01/15/27 144A 107,674 109,157 0.33
200,000 HT TROPLAST AG 9.250% 07/15/25 REGS 224,280 237,185 0.71
86,000 HUB INTL LTD 5.625% 12/01/29 144A 86,000 84,420 0.25
180,000 HUDBAY MINERALS 6.125% 04/01/29 144A 180,451 187,172 0.56
100,000 ICELAND BONDCO 4.375% 05/15/28 REGS 138,490 114,707 0.34
100,000 ICELAND BONDCO 4.625% 03/15/25 REGS 120,043 122,537 0.37
92,000 [11-VI INC 5.000% 12/15/29 144A 92,433 91,981 0.28
200,000 INEOS QUATTRO FI 2.500% 01/15/26 REGs 244,474 215,154 0.65
49,000 [INGEVITY CORP 3.875% 11/01/28 144A 47,472 46,261 0.14
229,000 ION TRADING TECH 5.750% 05/15/28 144A 233,219 231,573 0.69
48,000 JANE STREET GRP 4.500% 11/15/29 144A 48,000 47,134 0.14
157,000 JB POINDEXTER & 7.125% 04/15/26 144A 165,390 163,485 0.49
150,000 JBS USA/FOOD/FIN 5.500% 01/15/30 144A 162,615 159,326 0.48
77,000 KRAFT HEINZ FOOD 4.375% 06/01/46 86,016 81,669 0.24
156,000 LABL ESCROW ISS 10.500% 07/15/27 144 147,324 160,466 0.48
177,000 LABL INC 8.250% 11/01/29 144A 176,415 169,809 0.51
274,000 LIBERTY MEDIA 8.250% 02/01/30 255,215 283,861 0.85
136,000 LIFE TIME INC 5.750% 01/15/26 144A 140,527 136,578 0.41
151,000 LIFE TIME INC 8.000% 04/15/26 144A 151,000 153,864 0.46
192,000 LPL HOLDINGS INC 4.375% 05/15/31 144A 192,405 187,741 0.56
211,000 LSF9 ATL/VIC FIN 7.750% 02/15/26 144A 211,000 202,267 0.61
194,000 MADISON IAQ LLC 5.875% 06/30/29 144A 197,166 179,592 0.54
90,000 MAGNOLIA OIL 6.000% 08/01/26 144A 88,690 92,115 0.28
100,000 MARKS & SPENCER 3.750% 05/19/26 EMTN 145,060 135,880 0.41
100,000 MARKS & SPENCER 7.125% 12/01/37 144A 122,498 114,294 0.34
62,000 MINERVA MERGER 6.500% 02/15/30 144A 62,000 61,868 0.19
122,000 MODIVCARE ESCROW 5.000% 10/01/29 144A 122,000 118,375 0.35
337,000 MOZART DEBT ME 5.250% 10/01/29 144A 341,093 328,765 0.99
84,000 NAVIENT CORP 5.500% 03/15/29 82,504 81,891 0.25
180,000 NCR CORP 5.125% 04/15/29 144A 180,000 179,950 0.54
200,000 NETFLIX INC 3.625% 05/15/27 REGS 232,965 252,757 0.76
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107,000 NEXSTAR BROADC 4.750% 11/01/28 144A 108,768 106,294 0.32
317,000 NGL EN OP/FIN 7.500% 02/01/26 144A 317,000 320,392 0.96
222,000 NORDSTROM INC 5.000% 01/15/44 201,292 198,248 0.59
147,000 NORTHWEST FIBER 6.000% 02/15/28 144A 147,219 138,535 0.42
86,000 NOVELIS CORP 3.875% 08/15/31 144A 86,000 80,979 0.24
170,000 NOVELIS SHEET 3.375% 04/15/29 REGS 201,127 187,513 0.56
154,000 OCCIDENTAL PETE 3.500% 08/15/29 144,930 151,925 0.46
177,000 OCCIDENTAL PETE 6.375% 09/01/28 177,000 201,613 0.60
92,000 ONEMAIN FINANCE 3.500% 01/15/27 89,766 87,389 0.26
87,000 ONEMAIN FINANCE 4.000% 09/15/30 83,487 81,504 0.24
200,000 ORGANON FIN 1 5.125% 04/30/31 144A 200,000 200,156 0.60
76,000 PAPA JOHN"S INTL 3.875% 09/15/29 144A 74,760 72,366 0.22
240,000 PCF GMBH 4.750% 04/15/26 REGS 287,280 268,504 0.81
92,000 PECF USS INTERME 8.000% 11/15/29 144A 92,000 93,050 0.28
180,000 PICARD GROUPE 3.875% 07/01/26 REGS 213,462 199,200 0.60
200,000 PINNACLE BIDCO P 6.375% 02/15/25 REGS 227,390 270,393 0.81
202,000 POLAR US BORROW 6.750% 05/15/26 144A 202,000 193,174 0.58
85,000 POST HOLDINGS IN 4.500% 09/15/31 144A 82,558 80,998 0.24
255,000 PREMIER ENTERTAI 5.625% 09/01/29 144A 252,965 240,107 0.72
255,000 PREMIER ENTERTAI 5.875% 09/01/31 144A 252,616 240,647 0.72
155,000 QUICKEN LOANS 3.875% 03/01/31 144A 152,065 145,397 0.44
63,000 RACKSPACE TECH 3.500% 02/15/28 144A 61,226 58,916 0.18
27,000 RANGE RESOURCES 4.750% 02/15/30 144A 27,000 27,074 0.08
117,000 REALOGY GRP / CO 5.750% 01/15/29 144A 119,258 115,032 0.34
139,000 RENEWABLE NRG 5.875% 06/01/28 144a 144,945 139,658 0.42
215,000 RENT-A-CENTER 6.375% 02/15/29 144A 220,978 221,262 0.66
197,000 ROCKET SOFTWARE 6.5% 02/15/29 144A 197,000 186,961 0.56
37,000 ROCKIES EXPRESS 4.950% 07/15/29 144A 38,524 38,069 0.11
114,000 RYAN SPECIALTY G 4.375% 02/01/30 144A 114,173 113,288 0.34
200,000 SAMHALLSBYGG FXtoVA PERP 240,673 213,868 0.64
300,000 SCHAEFFLER AG 3.375% 10/12/28 EMTN 398,808 365,592 1.10
100,000 SCIL IV LLC / SC 4.375% 11/01/26 REGS 116,450 111,960 0.34
22,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW 3.875% 01/15/29 144A 21,168 20,935 0.06
150,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW 5.375% 01/15/31 144A 150,199 148,845 0.45
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79,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW 5.875% 07/15/27 144A 80,926 80,680 0.24
121,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYM 3.375% 07/15/31 115,706 112,551 0.34
77,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYM 4.125% 01/15/31 76,615 75,665 0.23
24,000 SERVICE CORP 3.375% 08/15/30 23,194 22,448 0.07
49,000 SERVICE CORP 4.000% 05/15/31 48,878 47,553 0.14
133,000 SHEA HOMES 4.750% 04/01/29 144A 134,381 130,818 0.39
169,000 SIRIUS XM RADIO 4.000% 07/15/28 144A 169,000 163,085 0.49
90,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENE 4.750% 02/01/32 90,599 90,260 0.27
107,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENE 5.375% 03/15/30 107,000 109,798 0.33
244,000 SPRINGLEAF FIN 5.375% 11/15/29 228,112 248,119 0.74
90,000 SQUARE INC 3.500% 06/01/31 144A 90,085 85,775 0.26
59,000 SRS DISTRIBUTION 6.000% 12/01/29 144A 59,000 57,396 0.17
49,000 SRS DISTRIBUTION 6.125% 07/01/29 144A 50,655 48,081 0.14
271,000 STANDARD INDS IN 3.375% 01/15/31 144A 261,012 248,464 0.75
70,000 STICHTING PERP 114,097 101,375 0.30
176,000 SUNOCO LP/FIN 4.500% 04/30/30 144A 176,000 173,149 0.52
72,000 SURGERY CENTER 6.750% 07/01/25 144A 64,713 72,183 0.22
126,000 SYNEOS HEALTH IN 3.625% 01/15/29 144A 122,413 118,618 0.36
88,000 TALLGRASS NRG 5.500% 01/15/28 144A 88,000 84,329 0.25
128,000 TALLGRASS NRG 6.000% 03/01/27 144A 126,196 129,610 0.39
200,000 TELECOM ITALIA 1.625% 01/18/29 EMTN 206,752 205,889 0.62
103,000 TENET HEALTHCARE 6.125% 10/01/28 144A 104,330 103,333 0.31
180,000 TERRAFORM POWER 4.750% 01/15/30 144A 184,811 181,192 0.54
300,000 TEVA PHARM FNC 4.500% 03/01/25 333,600 341,427 1.02
114,000 TEVA PHARMACEUT 6.150% 02/01/36 123,508 116,221 0.35
100,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTI 3.750% 05/09/27 115,800 108,704 0.33
200,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTI 4.375% 05/09/30 231,600 214,389 0.64
220,000 TI AUTOMOTIVE 3.750% 04/15/29 REGS 261,580 243,092 0.73
200,000 TOTAL PLAY 6.375% 09/20/28 REGS 200,000 186,818 0.56
216,000 TRANSDIGM INC 4.875% 05/01/29 WI 215,649 207,727 0.62
182,000 TUTOR PERINI CRP 6.875% 05/01/25 144A 182,667 180,635 0.54
200,000 UBS GROUP 4.875% 08/12/27 REGS 200,000 199,978 0.60
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131,000 UNITED CONT HLDG 4.875% 01/15/25 128,890 131,932 0.40
221,000 UNITI / CSL 6.500% 02/15/29 144A 222,793 209,398 0.63
100,000 VERISURE MIDHOLD 5.250% 02/15/29 REGS 120,930 110,944 0.33
260,000 VICTORIA PLC 3.750% 03/15/28 308,984 287,743 0.86
162,000 WATCO COS LLC/FI 6.500% 06/15/27 144A 162,000 167,095 0.50
145,000 WENDY"S INTL 7.000% 12/15/25 152,176 163,249 0.49
70,000 WESTERN GAS PAR 5.45% 04/01/44 75,475 77,452 0.23
134,000 WESTERN GAS PART 5.050% 02/01/30 123,755 140,582 0.42
140,000 WINDSTREAM ESCRO 7.750% 08/15/28 144A 138,430 140,798 0.42
160,000 WP/AP TELECOM 5.500% 01/15/30 REGs 180,576 175,748 0.52
22,000 WR GRACE HOLDING 4.875% 06/15/27 144a 22,061 21,917 0.07
109,000 WW INTERNATIONAL 4.500% 04/15/29 144A 106,940 96,868 0.29
212,000 WYNDHAM INC 6.625% 07/31/26 144A 222,279 226,623 0.68
18,000 ZI TECH/ZI FIN 3.875% 02/01/29 144A 17,028 16,969 0.05
263,000 ZIGGO 5.125% 02/28/30 144a 265,764 251,610 0.75
32,994,514 32,182,949 96.50

33,468,742 32,631,208 97.85

717,622 2.15

33,348,830 100.00
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

ATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ITION

AS AT JANUARY 31, 2022

(Expressed in United States dollars)

January 31,2022 January 31,2021

Assels
Cash and cath equivalents (Notes 2and &) § = 13 3932247
Margin - 240,000
Financial azsets at fakrvalae through profit or loss (Motes 3 and B) 32,631,208 61,195,346
Unrealised gain on forward curmency contracts (Note B) 1,464,934 193,284
Interest aceraal 458,056 800,652
Receivable from investments sold G11.404 526,507
Other asseis - 1,850
Tatal assets § 35,165,602 5 66,859 886
Liahilities
Payahle for mvestments purchased g 380,173 5 1. 985,949
Unrealised loss on forward currency contracts (Mate B) 1,160,217 1,140,435
Wet bank overdraft 60,025 -
Investment management fee payable (Mote 4} 69,681 142,078
Distributor fee pavable (Note 4) 45,922 66,337
Administration fee payable (Mote 4) 8,847 11,431
Agent fee payable (Note 4) 18,009 26,015
Audit fiee pavable 67,000 75,000
Custody fee payable (Mote 4) 1,351 242
Trustee fee payable (Mote 4) 3,781 3215
Other fee payable T62 42323
Liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to Unitholders) 1,816,772 3499207
Met assets atiribuiable to Unitholers 33,348 830 63.390.67%
Tatal lHabilities 5 35,165,602 5 65, BR0 BRG

Approved for issuance on behalf of FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, nof in its
individual capacity but solely as Trustee to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DLAM

Cayman Trust by:
Joevy Matsum Date: July 15, 2022

Sastry Dookhy

Approved for issuance on behalf of Crueensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd., not in its individual capacity but
solely as Manager to Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust by:

Karla Bodden Date: July 15, 2022
Carol Revnelds

The accompanying ntes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BAL HIGH EN
ASERIES TR TRL:
ATEMENT OF CO 1 ME
YEAR ENDED JANU 22
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended Year ended
Jonuary 31, 2022 January 31, 2021

Irves tment income/(loss es)
Interest from financial assets at fair value through

profit or kss (MNete 5) 5 2271,739 3 3,695,787
Met change in unrealised (depreciation)appreciation on financial

asaets af fair vabae through profit or loss (4.240,1549) 1,224,351
Met change in unrealised apprecistion on forward cumency contrmets 1,251 868 1,624,274
Met realised Joss on forward cumency contracts and foreign

exchange transactions (2.435.155) (2100, 060
Met realised gain{loss) on fimancial azgets at fair value through

prefit or loss 2,650,374 (3,430, 102)
Dividend income 9,558 13,898
Other ncome/{losses) 39,430 {1,264)

Total income (456,371) 1,016,854
Expenses
Investment management fee (Mote 4) 363,230 496,303
Distributor fee (Mote 4) 200,425 268,869
Adminisiration fee (Mote 4) 47,681 54,427
Custody fee (Nate 4) 34,504 40,308
Agent fee (Mote 4) B6441 105,435
Trustee fee (Mote 4) 3919 14,203
Audil fee 35,508 T1.081
Other expenses 63,126 179416

Total operating expenses 809,834 1,230,046

Met operating losses (1,356,205) (203,192)
Finance costs
Dastributions to Unithokders (Note &) (5.532,400) (10,011,725)
Taxation
Withholding tax {3,250) {18,859)

Met deerease in net sssets resulting from operations
attributalie to Unitholders 5 (6,5%1,855) £ (10,243, 776)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUS YMAN TRUST
MENT OF CHAN
TTRIBUTABLE TO ERS

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)

MNet assets
atiribatable fo
Unitholders
Balance as at January 31, 2020 £ B3,505,018
Units subscribed during the year 463,680
Units redeemed during the year (12,334,243)
Met decrease in net #5261 from operations attributable to Unitholders
during the year (10,243,776)
Balance as at January 31, 2021 63,390,679
Units subscribed during the year ARG, T
Units redeemed during the vear (23,536, 7900
Met decrease in net assets from opemtions attributable to Unitholders
during the year (6,991 855)
Balanee as at January 31, 2022 b 33,348,830

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

.
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L HIGH YIELD BO ENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023
(Expressed in United States dollars)
Year ended Year ended
I; v 31, 2022 Jamuary 31, 2021
Cash Mows from aperating activities
et decrease in net assets resulting from operations
attributable o Unithokders £ (6,991,855 H (10,243,778)

Adjustments to recancile net decrease in net asset resulting from
operations to net cash (used m)provided by operating activities:

Distributions 1o Unitholkders 5,632,400 10,011,725
Met realissd {gain)/loss on financial assets at fir value thoagh profit or loss (2,650,374) 3,430,102
Met change in unrealised deprecistion’| appreciation) on financial assets
o fair vale though profit or loss 4,240,184 (1,224,351}
Met change in unrealised appreciation on forward currency contracts (1,231 868) (1,624,274)
Met amorzation of premim (7,593) (23,684)
Changzs in assels and Eabilites related to operations:
Decrease in mangin 240,000 650,000
Decrease in interest accroal 342,596 272,137
Diecreaselincrease) i other assels 1,850 {1,850)
Increase in net bank overdraft 60,029 =
Decrease in investment management fee paynble (72,397) (19,036)
Decrease in distributor fee payable (20,415) {26,388)
Decrease in agent foe payable (8,006} {10,544)
Decrexse in adminiiration fee pavable (1,584) (5,243)
{Decrease)inerease in audit fee paysble (3, 00y 1,000
Increase n imsiee fee payable 566 44
Decrease in custody fee payable (1,073) (983)
{Decreaselinerease in other fee payable (41,562) 41,568
et cash (msed in)iprovided by operating activities (337, 402) 1,226,847
Cash flons from investing aetivities
Purchases of financial assets at far valoe through profil or loss (49,031,540) (546,920,973)
Procesds from sale of Mnancial assets ot fir valee through profi or bss 74,339,093 116,663,004
Met eash provided by investing activities 15.287.549 19,742,031
Cash flows from financing activities
Froceeds from subscriptions 10 Unithalders 486,796 463,680
Redemptions paid to Unitkolders (23,536, 790) {12,334.243)
Distedbutions paid to Unithalders (§,632,400) {10,011,723)
Net eash wsed in financing activities {28,682, 304) (21,882,288)
et change in cash and cash equivalents (3,932, 247) (913,410)
Cash and cash equivalents st beginning of year 3,932,247 4,845,657
Cash and cash equivalents at end of vear 5 - H 3,952 247
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest received § 2,902,870 M 3,967 924
Taxes paid § 3,250 § 18,850

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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BAL HIGH YIELD B 10N
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31,2022

1. tion

DIAM Cayman Trest {the “Trust™) is an exempted unit trast established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant
to declaration of trust (the “Trust Deed™) dated June 29, 2011, The Trust commenced operations on June 29, 2011.
The Trust is registered under the Cayman Islands Mutual Funds Act with effiect from July 15, 2011, The Trust's place
of business is 25 Main Street, P.O. Box 694, Grand Cayman KY1-1107, Cayman Islands.

The Trust filed a securities registration statement on July 8, 2011 pursuant to the Financial Instrument Exchange Law
with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau and a registration statement pursuant to the Investment Trust
Law with the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency.

Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the “Class Fund") is a series trust of the Trust. The investment
objective of the Class Fund is to seek high current income and the opportunity for capital appreciation mainly though
investment in a diversified portfolio of global high vield bonds. The Class Fund will follow a bottom-up approach
hased on a fundamental analvsiz when selecting global high yield bonds.

2. nificant ace li

The principal accounting pelicies applied in the preparation of these financial staternents are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation: The financial staternents of the Class Fund have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
and financial lisbilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the wse of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Trustee to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Class Fund's accounting
policies, The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assurnptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Motes 2, 8 and 9.

All references 1o net assets throughout this document refer to net assets atiributable to holders of Participating Units
unless otherwise stated. Wet assets per unil information as disclosed in Mote 7 has been determined as total assets less
total liabilities divided by the number of outstanding units of each class of participating units.

{a) Standards and amendments o existing standards gffective Febraary I, 2021

There are no standards, amendments to standards or interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on
February 1, 2021 that have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

B} New standards, amendiments and inerpretations issued but not gffective for the financial year beginning February
1, 2021 and not early adogred

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning

after February 1, 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements, None of these are
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements of the Class Fund.

110/212



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTESTO F
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022

Finan liahilities at fair value throu rofit or loss:
fa) Classification

Assets

The Class Fund classifies its investments based on bath the Class Fund’s business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cach flow characteristies of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, The Class Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and
uses that information to assess the assets” performance and to make decisions. The contractual cash flows of the Class
Fund’s debt securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of
collecting contractual cash flaws nor held both for collecting contractual eash flows and for sale. The collection of
contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Class Fund's business model’s objective. Consequently, all
investments are measured at fair value through profit ar loss.

Liabilities
Drerivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Class Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager and Trustee to evaluate the information about these financial
assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with their related financial information, for the purposes of making
investment management decisions.

b Recognition, derecognition and measwrement

The Class Fund records security transactions on a trade date basis, recognizing the cost or sales proceeds of securities
sold or purchased on a first-in-first-out basis. Fegular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade
date — the date on which the Class Fund commits to purchase or s2ll the investment. Financial assets at fair value
thraugh profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cach flows from the investments have expired or the Class
Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
Gains and lasses arising from changes in the fair value of the *financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

o) Fair value estinration

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets (such
as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quetations provided by the market on which the
securities are traded on the last day of trading in the period. The Clazs Fund utilises the last traded market price for
financial assets where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread, In circumstances where the last traded price
is not within the bid-ask spread, management will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that iz most
representative of fair value.

Investments or edher assets for which market quotations are not readily available from recognized price vendors will
be valued by prices furnished by invesiment services firms (such as brokers, dealers or other entities) or at their fair
value as determined in goed faith in sccordance with the procedures adopted by the Trustee with the advice from the
Sub-Tnvestment Manager. Premiums and discounts are amortised en an effective interest yield method to the maturity
of the investments to which they relate.
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A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR 2

1. Significant ac licies (continued
{d) Transfers between levels af the fair value hierarciy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting
period,

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash on demand and on short notice and all deposits
with eriginal terms to maturity of net mere than 3 menths. All of the Class Fund’s cash and cash equivalent balance
as at January 31, 2022 is maintained with the Custoedian of the Class Fund (Mote 4).

Margin: Margin includes margin cash held against the Class Fund's currency forwards.
Expenses: Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Interest income and interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: Inderest is recognised on a

time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents, Interest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities.

Income taxes: Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estate, transfer sales or other
Cayman lsland taxes payable by the Class Fund. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financial statements, Interest income earned by the Class Fund is generally subject to foreign withholding tax at source.
Withholding taxes on interest is shown as a separate line item in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Class Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are virtually all domiciled in countries other than the
Cayman Islands, Many of these foreign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be
applicable to non-residents, such as the Class Fund, Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined
en a self assessment basis and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Class Fund's brokers on a
“withholding”™ basis.

At January 31, the Class Fund has measured its tax liabilities with respect to foreign capital gains taxes at nil. However,
there is a risk that foreign tax authorities will begin secking 1o collect taxes on capital gains eamed by the Class Fund,
without giving any prior waming and possibly, on a retrospective basis. Any retrospective enforcement may result in
a substantial loss to the Class Fund,

Distributions: Distributions to the Unitholders are classified as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (Mote &)

Offsetting financial instruments: Financial assets and linbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
Statement of Financial Position where the Class Fund currently has a legally enforceakle right to set-off the recognised
amounts and there iz an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneowsly.

Forward currency and spot foreign exchange confracts: Forward currency and spot foreign exchange contracts are
camricd at fair valse. The unrealised gain or loss on open forward ewrrency contracts is calculated as the difference

between the contracted rate and the rate to close out the contract. Met realized gain on forward currency and spot
foreign currency contracts in the Statement of Comprehensive Income incliedes net gains and losses on contracts that
have been settled or offset by other contracts with the same counterparty. Unrealised gain or loss en open forward
currency and spot foreign exchange contracts is calculated as the difference between the contract rate and the applicable
forward rate, based upon rates reparted in published sources on the day of valuation, applied to the face amount of the
forward contract.
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR END RY 31, 2022

21, & it accountin nitimued

Translation of foreign currency amounts: Assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the United
States Dollar are franslated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the day of valuation. Foreign currency income and
expendifure items are converted at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction. Gains and losses on forcign
currencies are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arige. The Class Fund
does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in forcign exchange rates on
investments from flucheations arising from changes in market prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included
with the net realised and unrealized gain/{loss) on financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss.

Functipnal and presentation currency: Items included in the Class Fund's financial statements are measured using
he United States dollar (the “functional currency™), as the Class Fund primarily invests in United States dollar
denominated investments. In addition, the Class Fund has adopted the United States dollar as its presentation currency,

Participating Units: The Class Fund issues seven classes of units (Note 7) which are redeemable at the holder's
option and do not have identical rights. Such Participating Units are classified as financial liabilities. The Participating
Units ean be put bagk to the Class Fund by the holder at any business day for cash equal to a proportionate share of
the Class Fund's net assets, The Participating Units are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the
Staternent of Financial Position date if the Unitholder exercised their right to put the unit back to the Class Fund,

Redemptions pavable: Redemptions, whether expressed as dollars or Units, are recognized as redemptions payable
when each of the dollar er Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed, As a result, redemptions
paid after the end of the year, but based upon the year-end net asset values, are reflected as redemptions payable.

Subscriptions receivable: Receivables from Units subscribed represent amounts receivable from Unithelders for
subscriptions that had been processed prior to January 31, 2022 and 2021, but for which cash had not been received.

from iny Id and ble for i n rchased: These amounts represent receivables
for securities sold and payables for securities purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered
on the statement of financial position date respectively. The receivables from investments sold balance is held for
cellection.

These amousts are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. At each reporting
date, the Class Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts receivable from investments sold at an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the eredit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, If, at the
reporting date, the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Class Fund ghall measure the
loss allewanee 4t an amount equal 1o 12-month expected credit losses, Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter banknsptey or financial reorganisation, and default in payments are all considered
indicators that 4 loss allowance may be required, If the credit risk increases to the point that it is considered to be
credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss allowance,
A significant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment which is more than 30 days
past due. Any contractual payment which is more than 90 days past due is considered credit impaired.
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GLORAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022

. Financial as ir value through 1

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are comprised of corporate bonds (98.6%) (2021: 98.5%).
Convertible bonds (0.7%%) (2021: 1.5%), preferred shares (0.6%) (2021: Nil%) and other asset backed debt securities
(Mil%) (2021: 0.3%). The issuers of these securities operate in a diverse range of industries with a significant
concentration of US issued securities (66, 7%0) (2021: 64.2%),

Investrments include securities restricted in accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, which allows
far resale of such security among certain qualified institutional buyers. The total cost and fair value of the Rule 1444
Securities owned at January 31, 2022 is $18,932,506 and £18,484,477 (2021]: £33,321,956 and §34,645,129) which
represents 55.43% (2021: 54.65%) of net assets at January 31, 2022,

Investments pange in maturity date from April 15, 2022 to June 1, 2070 (2021: Scptember 30, 2021 to July 27, 2169)
and interest rates ranges from 0.00% to 12.00% (2021: 0.00% to 12.00%¢) as of January 31, 2022,

4. Significant agreements 5 I

Distributor

Oim July 5, 2011, the Units Distribution and Repurchase Agreement was entered between Queensgate Bank and Trust
Company Ltd. and Mizuho Securities Co., Ltd,, under which that party acts as Distributor of units in Japan subject to
terms and conditions. The Distributor is entitled to receive out of the assets attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered
Units a fee oF0.51% per annum of the Wet Asset Value attributable to such classes of units of the Class Fund.

Trustee

On June 29, 2011, FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited became the Trustee of
the Trust. Purseant to the Trust Deed, the Trustee has exclusive authority and overall responsibility for the Trust's
administration and management, which includes the responsibility for distribution and redemption of units in the Trust.
The Trustee has appeinted Mizuho Bank (USA) to provide the day-to-day administration of the Class Fund.

The Trustee is entitled to receive a fee of 0.01% per annum of the Met Asset Value of the Units during the three
calendar months immediately preceding such quarter-end payable in US dollars in arrears within 30 days from the end
af each calendar quarter subject to a quarterly minimum fee of 53,750

Administration

The Trustee on behalf of the Trust has entered into an agreement with Mizuho Bank (USA) dated July 5, 2011, under
which that party acts as Administrator to the Class Fund, For providing administration services to the Class Fund, the
Administrator receives an annual administration fee based on the average month end net asset value of the Class Fund
at maximum annual rates of 0.08%, subject to a quarterly minimum of $11,250.

Investment manager

Asset Management One Co., Ltd,, formerly DIAM Co., Ltd, (the “Trvestment Manager”) has been appointed as
Investmeni Manager to the Trust pursuant to the investment management agreement dated July 8, 2011, pursuant to
which the Investment Manager is autherized to supervise and direct the investment and reinvestment of assets in each
account, with full authority and at its discretion.

The Tavestment Manager is entitled to receive an annual fee of 0.755% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units and an annial fee of 0.47% of that part of the net asset value which is
attributable to the Non-Japan Publicly Offered Units payable quarterly in arrears.

The Investment Manager has delegated certain responsibilities 1o Janus Capital Management LLC (the “Sub-
Investment Manager'™)

12
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 3023

ificant a mients and ions (continwed

Custodian

Miziho Bank (USA) (the “Custodian™) has been appointed as the Custodian fo the Class Fund by the Trustes pursuant
1o a custody agreement dated July 8, 2011, The Custodian is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a
fee of 0.015% per anmum of the net asset value, or such other fee as may be agreed between the Trustee and the
Custodian from time o time,

Agent

On July §, 2011, the Agent Company Agreement was entered into between Queensgate Bank and Trust Company,
Ltd. and Mizmthe Securities Co., Lid. (the “Agent™). The Agent Company Agreement is an agreement pursuant to
which the Agent, having besn appointed by the Manager, agrees 1o submit the prospectuses regarding the unils of the
Class Fund to the Japan Securities Dealers” Association (“JSDA™), publicize the net asset value per unit and subrmit
the documents such as the financial statements and other documents to the JSDA. The Agent is entifled fo receive a
fiee of 0.20% per annum of the Met Asset Value attributable to the Japan Publicly Offered Units of the Class Fund.

Manager
Cueensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. {the “Manager”) entered into an agreement with the Trustes noted above
on 2% June 2011 and entered into the Supplemental Trust Deed dated 29 June 2011 with the Trustee.

The Manager prescribes management of the Class Fund's assets and issue and repurchase of the units of the Class
Fund. The Manager is entitled to receive out of the assets of the Class Fund a fee of 0.01% per annum of the net asset
value subject to a quarterly minimum fee of $3,750. The Manager's fee will be accroed daily and caleulated based on the
net asset value as at the immediately preceding day of valuation (daily) and payable quarterly in amears. The Manager fee
has been included with the Investment Manager fee on the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial
Position.

nterest from financi Tair value throu rofit or

Initerest from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is comprised oft

Year ended Year ended

January 31, 2022 January 31, 2021
Investment income

Interest coupon 5 2,263,546 i 3,672,101
Aceretion of digcount 77,198 175,468
Amortisation of premiam {69,305} (151,782)

£ 2371759 g 3,608 78T
fi, ributions

Distributions shall be made at the discretion of the Trustee, The distributions will be made out of the sum of the total
net investment income (if any), the net realized capital gains (if any) and the increase in net unrealized capital gains
(if any) camed by each Class during the period. Further, the Tnvestment Manager may direct the Administrator on
behalf of the Trustee to pay distributions out of the capital of the Class Fund if considered necessary by the Investment
Manager fo maintain a reasonable level of distributions for the Class Fund.
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A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023
. Distributi muted

During the vear, the following dishursements were made:

Year ended Year ended
January 31, 2022 January 31,2021
Distribotion paid from HYAUDA LD 5 4,353,039 5 6,341,043
Dastribution pald from HYJTPYBRL 168,727 TEL 3R
Distribution paid from HYTFYBSI1 132,926 TX2575
Distribution paid fom HYTPYIFY L5335 330029
Dastribution paid from HYUSDBRL GRO351 1. 166,844
Datribution paid from HYUSDBESI 217.8M G510, 056
5 5,632,400 5 10,011,725

7. Units in issue
Seven classes of Units are available for subscription, designated as follows:

Abbreviation Class Unit description and characteristics

HYUSDUSD  USD (USD hedged) (Mon-Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBRL USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYUSDBS1  USD (Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)
HYAUDAUD AUD {AUD hedged) (Distribution) (Japan Publicly Offered Units)

HYIPYIPY JBY (JFY hedged) (Distribution)

HYIFYBS1 JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket hedged) (Distribution)

HYIPYBRL  JPY (BRL hedged) (Distribution)

The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the USD (BRL hedged) (Distribution) Class Units, LSD
{Resource Country Curmrencies Basket hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and USD (USD hedged) (Non-Distribution)
Class Units by an investor is 1 Unit and in incremental amounts of 1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initial subscription
amount for the AUD (AUD hedged) (Distribution) Class Units by an investor is 1 Unit and in incremental amounts of
1 Unit thereafter. The minimum initial subscription amount for each of the JPY (Resource Country Currencies Basket
hedged) (Distritution) Class Units and JPY (JPY hedged) (Distribution) Class Units and JPY (BRL hedged)
{Distribution]) Class Units is ¥10,000 and in incremental amounts of ¥1 thereafter,

The Units of the Class Fund are redeemable at the option of the Unitholders on each dealing day, at a redemption price
equal to the et asset value per unit as determined on such dealing day, provided that the redemption notice has been
received by the Trustee not less than 1 business days prior to the relevant dealing day.

w14
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A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022

7. Units in issue (continued

Unit transactions during the year ended January 31, 2022 are as follows:

MNet Asset
Value

Class Curréncy  Opening Units  Units lssued  Units Redecmed  Closing Units per Unit
HYAUDAUD AUD 1,101,182 4,450 (00,000 805,632 3805
HYTPYERL PY 301,563 4,284 (305,847} . -
HYTFYBS1 TPy 192,547 . {192,947 - -
HYIPYIPY Py 73,168 - (72,168) - -
HYUSDBRL UsD 603,637 - (90,789) 512,848 10.32
HYUSDES] UsD 0775 - (26,641) 73,134 21.05
HYUSDUSD UsD 31644 1,815 {2.578) 30481 1a61.31
Unit transactions during the year ended January 31, 2021 are as follows:

MNet Assel
Value

Class Currency  Opening Units  Units Issued  Units Redeemed  Closing Units per Unit
HYAUDAUD AUD 1,308,631 9,770 (217219 1,101,182 44.00
HYTPYEBRL TPy 320363 - (18, 800) 301,563 1,135.63
HYIPYES] Py 219374 4373 (30,800) 192,947 2,287.08
HYTPYIFY Iy B, 868 - (9, 700 72,168 7,001.97
HYUSDERL UsD GELE19 - (59,283) B0363T 10.74
HYUSDES] usD 221442 4,850 (126,547 TS 23.26
HYUSDUSD UsD 38,201 169 (6, 726) 31644 160.93

The Class Fund's capital is primarily represented by these Units, In accordance with the objectives outlined in Note 1
and the risk management policies in Note 8, the Class Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received from
Unitholders into appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions, with such
liguidity being sugmented by short-term borrowings or redemption of investments where necessary. As of January
31, 2022, all units of the Class Fund were held by two unithalders (2021: two unitholders).

Financial risk management

i ial i :
The Class Fund’s activities expose it to a varety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, currency risk and
imterest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Class Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse efficts on the Class Fund's financial
performance. The Class Fund uses forward currency contracts to moderate cerfain risk exposures.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The maximum loss of capital on debt securities is limited
to the fair value of these positions, The maximum loss of capital on forward currency contracts is limited to the
nedional contract values of those positions,

Price risk:

The Class Fund is exposed to debt securities and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the Class
Fund for which prices in the fiture are uncertain. ‘Where non-monetary financial instruments are denominated in
currencies ather than the USD, the price initially expressed in foreign currency and then converted into USD will also
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The “Currency risk™ paragraph below sets out how this
component of price risk is managed and measured.

S 15-
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Price risk (gsontinued):

Derivatives include instruments and contracts the value of which is linked to one or more underlying securities,
financial berchmarks or indices. The value of a derivative depends largely upon price movements in the underlying
asset. Many derivatives provide significantly more market exposure than the money paid or deposited when the
transaction is entered into. A relatively small adverse market movement can resuli not only in the loss of the entire
ivestment, but may also expose the Class Fund to the possibility of a loss exceeding the original ameunt invested.
There can be no assurance that derivatives that the Class Fund wish to acquire will be made available at any particular
times on satisfactory terms or at all,

The Class Fund’s policy is to manage price risk through diversification and selection of securities and other financial
instruments within specified limits set by the governing documents of the Class Fund, The Class Fund may engage
in aver-the-counter foreign currency forward contracts for the account of the Class Fund.

The Investment Manager does not manage the Class Fund's investment strategy 1o track a benchmark or any other
index. At January 31, 2022, the Class Fund's market risk is affected by three main components: changes in actual
market prices, interest rate and foreign currency movements, IT the market prices of the bond portfolio {excluding
forward contracts) at January 31, 2022 had increased by 10% with all ather variables held constant, this would have
increased net assets atiributable to Unitholders by approximately 53,263,121 (2021: $6,1 19,535). Conversely, if the
market prices of the bond portfolio at Januvary 31, 2022 had decreased by 10%, this would have decreased net assets
atiributable to Unithelders by approximately 3,263,121 (2021: 56,119,535)

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based upon the portfolio composition {exchuding forward contracts) as at
January 31, 2022, The composition of the Class Fund's investment pertfolio is expected to change over time.
Acecordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of January 31, 2022 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the
Class Fund's net assets in the future,

Curreney rizk:

The Class Fund will have exposure to fluchations in currency exchange rates through imvestment of the Class Fund's
assels in investments denominated in currencies other than US dollars. The Class Fund intends to enter info currency
hedging transactions which are designed to reduce, but not eliminate exchange-rate risk and protest all or amy part of
the assets from the currency depreciation against US dollars. While the Class Fund will aim to hedge the currency
expasure of the units to fluctuations between US dollars and the investment surrency fully, the exposure will not
always be 1009 hedged mainly because the future value of the relevant investments will change.

The markets in which foreign exchange transactions are effected are highly volatile, highly specialised and highly
technical, Significant changes, inchuding changes in liquidity and prices, can occur in such markets within very short
periads of time, often within minutes.

At January 31, 2022, the Class Fund's net assets and lizhilities (exchuding net asscts attributable to Unitholders and
Class-specific forward curreney contracts) denominated in foreign currencies are as follows:

Jamuary 31, 2022 January 31, 2021
Amounts 10%s sensitivity® Amounts 10% sensitivity*
British Pound g (31,456) (31500 % 10,958 1,006
Eura [234,448) (23,445) 0,085 44,00
§ (265,944} £ 431,044

=t January 31, 2022, had the exchange rate between the non US Dollar and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10%% with a1l other variables held constant, the inerease or decrease respectively in net assets atiributable to Unitholders
would ameunt to approximately a5 noted above, excluding the impact of Class-specific forward currency confracts.

<16 -
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4. Financial risk management {continued]}

Currency risk (continued):
‘A1 other assets and liabilities are denominated in U.S. Dollar, except for Class-specific forward currency contracts
considered below,

At Jamuary 31, 2022, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the LS dollar increased or decreased by
10%% with all sther variables held constant, the increase of decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in LSLY)

is shown below.
NAY impact of 10%:
eurrency appreciation
Currency dﬂm‘?!% Classes !;EEgd‘
AUD 283, AUDAUD, UsDBES1, IFYBS1
ZAR 46,587 JPYBS1, USDRS]
BREL 514,762 JSDBSI, USDBRL, JPYBSIL, JPYBRL

At January 31, 2021, had the exchange rate between the below currencies and the US dollar increased or decreased by
10% with all sther variables held eonstant, the increase or decrease respectively in net assets (denominated in LISD)

is shown below,
NAY impact of 10%
currency appreciation’

Currency epreciation -
JPY 418,227 TPYIPY, JFYBRL. JFYBSI
AUD 3,911,164 AUDAUD, USDBS1, JFYBS]
ZAR 203,014 IFYBS1, USDBSI
BRL 1,101,732 USDBS], USDBRL. JPYBS1, IFYBRL

*These sensitivity figures show the impact on the Class Fund's everall MAV and Net Income. However, the impact shown above
for each currency woald only have an effect an the Classes affected as shown above and would not have any impact on the ather
Classes.

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's net currency
position on a daily basis.

Inte rick:

The value of fixed income assets may change based on interest rate fluctuations. Typically, when interest rates
increase, the value of fixed income assets tend to depreciate. On the contrary when inferest rate decreases, the value
of fixed income assets tend to appreciate. The degree of the change of the value of the fixed income assel will depend
on a number of factors including the maturity and conditions of issuance of the fixed income asset.

Except for the Class Fund's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, substantially all asscts and liabilities
have either interest rate repricing dates or maturity dates of less than & menths, The Class Fund's financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturily dates, is as follows:

Less tham 1 Greater than Mo repricing on
year 1to Syears  5to 10 years 10 years maturity date Tatal
January 31, 2022 240,067 6,955,070 22,859,860 2,367,621 208,590 § 31,631,208
January 31, 2021 843,684 22,495,737 36,249,164 1,606,761 - % 61195346
-17-
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8. Financial risk management {continmed)

il s
At January 31, should interest rates have lowered by 100 basis points with all other variables remaining constant, the
increase in net assets atiributable to Unitholders for the year would amount te approximately $3,127,160 (2021:
§6,572,256), arising substantially from the increase in market values of debt securities, If interest rates had risen by
100 basis points, the decrease in net assets would amount to approximately 35,008,817 (2021: £5.677,134). In
accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's overall interest sensitivity
on a daily basis.

The Class I‘“und iz exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing fo discharge an obligation.

The main concentration to which the Class Fund is exposed arises from the Class Fund's investmenis in debi securities.,
The Claes Fund is also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents,
margin and other receivable balances. The Class Fund seeks to mitigate its exposure to credit risk by placing it cash
balances and transacting its securities activity with large financial institutions.

The Class Fund invests in global high vield bonds and other high yield fixed income securitics o pursue income
generation. Tt is possible that increased credit risk may prevent the investment objective of pursuing a high level of
income gain from being achieved. High yield fived income securities and lower-rated fixed income securities are
securities rated below Baa by Moody's, BER by Fitch or BEB by S&P. Lower-raled fixed income securities may be
below “investment grade” and face ongoing uncertainties and exposure to adverse business, financial or economic
conditions that could lead to the issuer's inability to meet timely interest and principal payments,

The lower ratings of certain securitics held by the Class Fund reflect a greater possibility that adverse changes in the
financial condition of the issuer, or in general economic conditions, or both, or an unanticipated rise in interest rates,
may impair the ability of the issuer to make payments of interest and principal. Such securities camy a higher degree
of default risk which may affect the capital value of an investment.

The inability of issers to make timely payments of interest and principal may affiect the value of securitics held by

the Class Fund. In the absence of a liquid trading market for certain securitics, it may not be possible to establish the
fair value of such securities,
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8. Financial risk management {confinued)

Credit risk (continued):

The rating assigned 1o a security by Moody’s, S&F or Fitch does not reflect an assessment of the volatility of the
security's market value or the liquidity of the investment. A security may not necessarily be realised when its rating is
reduced below its rating at the time of purchase. Portfolio by rating category for each class of debt sscurities is as

follows:
January 31,2022 January 31,2021
o al Ya of
___Fair Value Fortiolin Fair Value Parifolio

Corporate Bonds
BEE g 459,421 1.41% 13 439816 0.72%
BHE- 470,054 1.29%% 1,487,102 243%
BE+ 5,970,176 18.30% 6,873,224 11238
BE 484,834 1068% 5,443,657 R.50%
BE- o, 302 908 13.46% 10,988,107 17.56%
B+ 2427 484 TAd% 5,228 266 E3a%
B 5,524,514 15.16% %,532,661 13.98%
B- 2,786,127 B.A4%% 7,331,352 11,585
OCC+ 4,139,959 12.65% 7254315 11.85%
oo 1,831,451 561% 35019369 5.75%
coc- . 0.00% 852,624 1.39%
MR 94 1.106%G 2,338,006 18288
Tatal Corporate Bonds 32,182,949 DE.63% 50,308.499 98, 54%
Convertible Bonds
BEEB- - 000 475.347 0.78%
B« . 0005 - 0.00%
OO0+ - [T - 0L08%
MR 238665 0755 411,500 0675
Tutal Convertible Bonds 238669 0.75% 856,847 1.46%
Common Stocks
BEB 208,590 D.64% - D.00%
Total Asset-Backed Securities 208,590 0.64% - -

£ 31631208 100.00% 5 61195346 100.00%

Cash and cash equivalents which potentially expose the Class Fund to credit risk consist primarily of call balances
and placements with an original maturity of 3 months or less from placement. The cash equivalents are placed with
Mizuho Trust & Banking Cayman Islands by the Custodian (which has an S&P credit rating of A- (2021: A-)) and
thus are not considered to pose a significant credit risk. Margin is held with JP Morgan (which has an S&F credit
rating of A~} through a sub-custody arrangement and is also not considered to pose a significant credit risk.

Al transactions are settled/paid for upen delivery using approved brokers, The risk of default is considered minimal,
as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once
the securities have besn received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation,

The counterparties to the Class Fund's non-exchange traded derivative confracts are major financial institutions.

Management does not consider that eredit risk related to open derivative contracts will have a material adverse effect
on the financial condition of the Class Fund.

S19-
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8. Financial meni {continued
Credit rigk {continued):

The Class Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default, Management consider both historical analysis and forward looking information in determining any
expected credit loss, Management consider the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been
recognised based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant o the
Class Fund.

In accordance with the Class Fund's policy, the Sub-Invesiment Manager monitors the Class Fund's eredit pasition
on a daily basis,

Liguidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Class Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to setle its
obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

The Class Fund may periodically invest in derivative contracts and debt securities that are traded over the counter. As
a result, the Class Fund may not be able to liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount ¢lose
to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirements, or be able to respond to specific events such as deterioration in
the creditworthiness of any particular issuer.

As at January 31, 2022 and 2021, all the unrealised gains and losses on forward currency confracts matire within 90
days or less.

Participating Units are redeemed on demand at the Unitholder's option, However, the Trustee does net foresee that
this contractual maturity disclosed will be representative of the actual eash outflows, as holders of these instruments
typically retain them for the medium to long term.

As at January 31, 2022 and 2021, all other liabilities of the Class Fund had a contractual maturity of less than one
maonth, The Investment Manager monitors the Class Fund's liquidity position on an ongoing basis.

F H

The Class Fund may invest directly or indirectly, in markets where custodial and/or sentlement systems are not fully
developed, The assets of the Class Fund which are traded in such markets and which have been entrusted to sub-
custodians, in circumstances where the use of such sub-cusiodians is necessary, may be exposed to certain risks. Such
risks include, but are not limited to, a non-true delivery versus payment settlement, a physical market, and as a
consequence the circulation of forged securities, poer information in regards to corporate actions, registration process
that impacts the availability of the securities, lack of appropriate legal/fiscal infrastrecture and lack of
compensationrisk fund with a central depository.

The Class Fund maintaing a eustedy sccount with its prime broker and primary custodian, Mizsho Bank (USA),
(“Mizuho™). Although the Trustee monitors Mizuho, and believes that they are appropriate custodians, there is no
puarantes that Mizuhe, or any other custodian that the Class Fund may use from time to time, will not become
insolvent, While both the 1S, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect
customer property in the event of a failure, insolvency or liguidation of a broker-dealer, there is no certainty that, in
the event of & failure of a broker-dealer that has custody of Class Fund asscts, the Class Fund would not incur losses
due to ils assets being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both, Because
substantially all of the Class Fund's assets are custodied with ene eustodian, such losses could be significant and could
materially impair the ability of the Class Fund to achieve its investment objective.
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A ncial risk ment {co

Health crises, such as pandemic and epidemic diseases, as well as other catastrophes that interrupt the expected course
of events, such as natural disasters, war or ¢ivil disturbance, acts of terrorism, power outages and other unforeseeable and
external events, and the public response to or fear of such diseases or events, have and may in the fufure have an adverse
effect on the Fund's investments and the Investment Manager's operations. For example, any preventative or protective
actions that governments may take in respect of such discases or events may rezult in periods of business disruption,
inability to obtain raw materials, supplics and component parts, and reduced or disrupted operations. In addition, under
guch circumstances the operations, including functions such as trading and valuation, of the Fund and other service
providers could be reduced, delayed, suspended or otherwise disrupted, Further, the occurrence and pendency of such
diseases or events could adversely affect the economies and financial markets either in specific countries or worldwide.

ir Value D res:
In accordance with IFRS 13, the Class Fund is required to classify fair value measurements wsing a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair vahe hicrarchy has the following
levels:

«  Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels or liabilities (level 1).

«  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are abservable for the asset or liability, either dincetly
(that is, as prices) or indirecily (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

+  Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level
3)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined
on the hasis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair vahue measurement in its entirety. For this purpose,
the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. 1f a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a level
3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires
judgment, considering factors specific 1o the asset or liakility.

The determination of what constitutes *observable’ requires significant judgment by the Class Fund. The Class Fund
considers observable data 1o be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifible, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market,

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Trust’s financial assets and liabilities (by class)
rneasured at fair value:

As at January 31, 2022 Lavell Level 2 vil 3 Tustal

Agets

Preferred shares H &5 § - 5 - % 208,590

Corporate bands - 32,182,949 . 32,182,949

Cenvertible bonds - 239,669 - 130,669

Unsealized gain on forward

currency contracts - 1464934 - 1,464,934

Taotal asseis 208,590 33,887,552 8 = 5 ad ﬁ.]-ﬂ

Liabilities

Unrealized loss on forward

currency capiracs 3 -5 1,160,217 % - & 1,160,217

Total liabilities £ - & 1160217 § - 5 1,160,217
S -
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#. _Financial risk management {continued)

Fair Value Disclosures (continued}:
As at January 31, 2021 Level 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Total
Assels
Corporate bonds £ . g 0,308,499 £ - b 60,308,454
Comvertible bonds - 886,847 = BB6, 8247
Unrealized gain on forward
CUFERcY contracts - 193,284 = 193,284
Taotal assets b - £ 51,388,630 % - £ GLIEEEI0
Liabilities
Unrealized loss on forward
curmency contracts £ - 3 1,140,435 8 - b 1.140.435
Total liabilities £ - 7 1,140,435 § - 5 1,140,435

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer quotations or altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.
These include most corporate and convertible bonds, certain non-US sovereign obligations, morigage backed
securities and some over-the-counter derivatives, As level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in active
markets andor are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjnsted to reflect illiguidity and‘or non-
tramsferability, which are generally based on available market information.

Investments classified within level 3 have gignificant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or not at all. As
observable prices are not available for these securitics, the Class Fund has used valuation techniques to derive the fair
value, At January 31,2022 and 2021 the Class Fund held no level 3 investments.

wmits gubject to mste N 1L LE:

Iffs i Ing arrs d

The Class Fund is required to disclose the impact of offsetting assets and liabilities represented in the Statement of
Financial Position to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting
arrangements on its financial position for recognized assets and liabilities. These assets and liabilities include certain
financial instruments and derivative instruments that are either subject to an enforceable master netting amangement,
or similar agreement, As at January 31, 2022 and 2021 the Class Fund had derivative assets and liakilities that are
subject to three master netting arrangements with its derivative counterparties.

The Class Fund and its counterparties have elected 1o setile all transactions on a gross basis hewever, each
party has the eption to settle all epen contracts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party. Per the
terms of the master netting agreement, an event of default includes the follewing:

»  failure by a parly to make payment when due;

»  fuilure by a party to perform any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment) if such failure
is not remedied within 30 days after notice of such failure is given to the party;

s  bankruptcy.

The Fund has elected not to offset fair value amounts recognized for cash collateral receivables and payables
against fair value amounts recognized for derivative positions executed with the same counterparty under the
same master nefting arrangement.

5
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NO

YEARE

8. Financi napement (continued

The following tables present the Class Fund's financial asset
master netting arrangemenits and similar agreements, The tab

Financial assets subject o offsetting, enforceable master nett

A
Gross amounts of
recognised
financial assets

Description

022

Forward currency contracts 1464934
2021

Forward currency coniracts 193,284

MNCIAL STATEMENTS

1, 2023

s and liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable
les are presented by type of financial instrument.

ing arrangements and similar agreements:

B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  MNet amounis of
recognised financial assets
financial presenied in the
linhilities set-off statement of
in the staternent  financial position
of financial
pesition
- 1,464,934
1,464,934
- 193,284

C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounis of Related amount et amount
financial assets x5 not set-off in the statement of
presented in the financial position
statemnent of D) and Dii) D) Collateral
financial position Financial received
Instrumenis
Counterparty
1022
Counterparty 1 215 225 - -
Counterparty 2 109 646 1,108 - 108,538
Counterparty 3 6,122 6,122 - -
Counterparty 4 2,189 127 - 1,862
Counterparty § 5,628 4,739 - 889
Counterparty & 1,341,124 1,139 54% - 201,575
1,464,934 1,152,070 - 312,864
-23-
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

Counterparty
2021

Counterparty |
Counterparty 2
Counterparty 3
Counterparty 4
Counterparty 5
Counterparty &
Counterparty 7

Description
2022
Forward currency contracts

2021
Forward currency contracts

Counterparty
022

Counterparty |
Counterparty 7
Counterparty 2

Ooooooooooooooooooad

C=AR E=CD
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the Met amount
financial assels statement of financial position
presented in the D) and DNii} D(ii) Collateral

statemnent of Financial received
financial position Instruments
32,259 - - 32259
10,402 10,402 - -
32,331 19,270 - 13,061
411 - - 411
5002 5,002 - -
19915 19,915 - -
92 9464 - - 92 964
193,284 54,589 - 138,695
A B C=A-B
Gross amounts of  Gross amounts of  Met amounts of
recognised recognised financial
financial financial assets lighilities
liabilities set-off in the presented in the
statement of statement of
financial position  financial position
1,160,217 - 1,160,217
1,160,217
1,140,435 - 1,140,435
1,140,435

C=A-B I E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the Met amount

financial statement of financial position

liabilities D1} and Di(ii) IXii) Collateral
presented in the Financial pledied

statement of Instruments
financial position
6,513 225 - 6,288
1,174 . - 1,174
1,108 1,108 - -
-4 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

D JA 2

8. Financial risk managenient {continued)

C=A-B [§] E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set=off in the Met amount
financial statement of financial position
liabilities (i) and DYii) D(ii) Collateral
presented in the Financial pledged
statement of Instruments
financial position
Counterparty {continued)
2022 {continued)
Counterparty 3 6,807 6,122 - (85
Counterparty 4 327 327 - -
Counterparty 5 4,739 4,739 - -
Counterparty & 1,139,549 1,139,549 - .
1,160,217 1,152,070 - 5,147
C=A-B D E=C-D
Met amounts of Related amounts not set-off in the Met amount
finaneial statement of financial position
liahilities D{i}) and D(ii) i) Collateral
presented in the Financial ledged
statement of Instruments
financial position
Counterparty
021
Counterparty 2 87,182 10,402 - 76,780
Counterparty 3 19,270 19,270 . -
Counferparty 5 818,057 5002 240,000 573,055
Counterparty 6 56,597 19,915 - 36,682
Counterparty 8 100 - - 100
Counterparty ¢ 41,036 - - 41,036
Counterparty 10 118,193 - - 118,193
1,140,435 54,5589 240,000 845,846

Ameunts in D{i) and D(ii) above relate to amounts subject to set-off that do not qualify for offsetting under
(B} above. This includes (i) amounts which are subject to set-off against the asset (or liability) disclosed in
* 4" which have not been offset in the statement of financial position, and (ii) any financial collateral (including
cash collateral), both received and pledged.

9, Assels liabilities not carrie fair value but for which fair value is dis d
Investments are carried at fair value. The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities are carried

at amortised cost; their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Cash and eash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term investments in
an active market. Cach and cash equivalents have been determined using level | inputs. Margin includes
restricted cash balances held as margin or collateral for foreign currency forwards trading. Margin has been
determined using level 1 inputs.

=28
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GLOBAL HIGH YTELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A OF DIAM TR
NOTES MNCIAL &
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022

or which fair value is d

Receivable from investments sold snd other receivables include the contractual amounts for setilement of
trades and other obligations dug to the Class Fund. Payable for investments purchased and aceruals represent
the contractual ameunts and obligations due by the Class Fund for settlement of trades and expenses. These
receivables and payables have been determined using level 2 inputs,

The puttable value of Participating Units is calculated based on the net difference between total assets and all
ather liabilities of the Class Fund in accordance with the Class Fund's goveming documents. These
Participating Units are not traded on an active market. A demand feature i attached 1o these units, as they are
redeemable at the Unitholders” option and can be put back to the Class Fund at any dealing date for cash equal
1o a proportionate share of the Class Fund's net asset value attributable to the Unit Class (Notes 2 and 7). The
fxir value is based on the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be
required to be paid. The impact of discounting in this instance is not material. As auch, Level 2 is deemed to
be the most appropriate categorisation for net assets attributable to Unitholders.

10, Commitments

Irs the normal course of business, the trustee and/or Manager (“Management”™) on behalf of the Trust enters
infe coniracts that contsin a variety of representstions and warranties and which provide general
indemnifications. Management's maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown, as this would
imvalve future claims that may be made against Management that have not yet occurred, however, based on
experience, Management expects the risk of boss to be remote,

11, uent even

From February 1, 2022 through July 15, 2022, there were subscriptions and redemptions of $79,653
and $2,308,596, respectively.

Subsequent events were evaluated up until July 15, 2022, which was the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued.

- 26 -
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
EMENTARY MEN TE
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022
AMORTIZED FATR % OF

QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALUE NET ASSETS

PREFERRED SHARES
3,950 BECTON DICEINSON AND 6.000% 0670123 B _§ 212,159 8§ 208,590 0.63%
212,159 208,560 0.63%

CONVERTIBLEBONDS

57000 AIR TRANSPORT SE 1.125% 10V15/24 62426 61,369 0.18%
200,000 XERO INVMNTS LTD 12/0225 199,643 178,300 0,54%
262069 239,669 0,72%

CORPORATE BONDS
S4000 ABCSUPPLY CO 4,000% 01/ 15/28 1444 53,396 52,958 0.16%
100,000 AR FRANCE-KLM 3.000% 07/01/24 118,849 111,186 0.33%
0,000 ALBERTSONS COS 4.625% 01/15/27 1444 216,642 225 488 D65
158,000 ALBERTSOMS COS 4.875% 02/15/30 1444 161,554 161,330 0.45%
04,000 ALLEGHENY TECH 5.125% 10/01/31 206,923 199,242 0.60%
250,000 ALLIED UNIVERSAL 3.625% 06/01/28 REgs 300,123 264,435 0799
100,000 ALLIED UNIVERSAL 4.575% 06/01/28 /EGS 139,100 125,663 0.38%
00,000 ALTICE FRANCE 10.500% 05715727 REG 201,877 212,246 0.64%
286,000 ALTICE FRANCE 5.125% 07/ 15/29 1444 286,000 264,938 0.79%
205,000 ALTICE FRANCE 5.500% 10/15/2% 1444 205,000 194,253 0,58%
220,000 AMERICAN AIRLINE 5.500% 0420026 0,000 224,950 0.67%
163,000 AMERICAN ATRLINE 5.750% 04720029 163,000 167,150 0.50%
104,000 ANTERO RESOURCES 7.625% 0201/29 1444 105,644 113,463 0.34%
120,000 APACHE CORP 4.350% 01/15/30 116,573 130,740 0.3%%
150,000 AP GROUP DE INC 4.125% 07715/29 1444 150,000 144,597 0.43%
70,000 ARCHROCK LPVFIN 6,875% 04/01/2T 1444 73,408 71,596 0.20%
167,000 ARCONIC ROLLED P 6,125% 027/ 15/28 1444 168,324 175510 0.52%
0,000 ARD FINAMCE SA 06/30v27 REGS 225,388 26543 0.65%
45000 ATHORE ING 4.250% 06/01/31 1444 480000 4731 0.14%
168,000 AUSTIN BIDCO INC 7.125% 12/15/28 1444 171,646 170,853 0.51%
304,000 BAUSCH HEALTH 5.000% 0130428 1442 296,272 257,652 0.77%
73,000 BAUSCH HEALTH 5.000% 02/15/29 1444 73,000 5,021 0.18%
300,000 BCP VMODULAR 6.750% 11/30/29 REGs 346,830 312,633 0.94%
143,000 BEACON ROOFING S 4,125% 05/ 15/29 1444 141,284 136,573 0.41%
£3,000 BLOOMIN BRANDS 5,125% 04/15/29 1444 84,430 £2.309 0.25%
135,000 BUILDERS FIRSTSO 4.250% 020132 JAN 135,673 132,382 0.400%
42,000 CANO HEALTH LLC 6.250% 10/01/28 1444 40,813 40,370 0.12%
156,000 CARGO ATRCRAFT M 4.750% 0201/28 1444 261,787 261,047 0.75%
178,000 CARNIVAL CORP TAZE% 030026 1444 180,103 181,882 0555
158,000 CARROLS RESTAURA 5.875% 07/01/29 1444 154,283 136,935 041%
176,000 CARVANA CO 5.500% 041527 1444 179,505 165,611 01.50%
200,000 CELLNEX FINAMNCE 3.875% 070741 1444 197,448 185,450 0.56%
73,000 CENTURY COMMUNIT 3875% 08/15/29 1444 73,000 0,016 0.21%
90,000 CHARLES SCHW AR FXteVA PERP 1 20,310 0,024 0.27%
100,000 CHSACOMMUNITY $.250% 05715030 1444 100,000 99,397 0.30%

262000 CHSCOMMUNITY 6.875% /1529 1444 266,375 259,466 0.78%

-77-
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L0 1GH YIELD BOND NCY O™
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
M HEDULE OF NTS
ED JANL. 22
AMORTIZED FAIR %% OF
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIFTION COST VALLE MET ASSETS
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)

43,000 CIEMA CORP 4.000% 01731730 144A 3 43,000 § 42,638 0.13%
138,000 COINBASE GLOBAL 3.375% 10001/28 1444 136,282 123,752 0.37%
117,000 COMNBASE GLOBAL 3.625% 10001731 1444 115,857 101,357 0.31%
146,000 COMPASS GRI LLC 5.250% 04/ 15/29 1444 146,000 144,378 043%

65,000 COMPASS MIM INTL 6,750% 12/01/27 1444 71,386 71,313 021%
182,000 CONSOLIDA TED COM 5.000% 10/01/28 1444 182,649 176,625 0.53%
350,000 COMSTELLILM SE 3.125% 07/15/2% REGS 425,075 372,008 L12%
354,000 OORELOGIC THC 4.300% 0501728 1444 353,550 339734 1.02%
133,000 COVERT MERGECO 4.875% 12/01/29 1444 134,093 132,775 0.40%%
95,000 CP ATLAS BUYER 7.000% 12/01/28 1444 94795 90,453 0.27%
300,000 CPl PROPERTY GRO FX1oVA PERP 357,858 305,597 0.92%
200,000 CPI PROPERTY GRO FXtoVA PERF . 230,063 222,731 0.6T%
200,000 CSCHOLDINGS LLC 4.625% 12001730 1442 187,924 178,052 0.53%

91,000 CTR PARTNERSHIP 3.875% D6/30/28 1444 91,268 90,226 0.27%
175,000 DAVITA TNC 3.750% 021531 1444 168,764 161,085 0.45%
137,000 DIAMOND BC BY 4.625% 1001729 1444 135,748 129,534 0395
WA,000 DIC ASSET AG2250% 092126 352,620 315,263 0058
3000 DISH DBS CORP 5,125% 06/00/ 29 92,230 85,518 0265
195,000 DORMOCH DEBT MER 6.625% 10/15/2% 1444 195,000 188,419 0.56%
234,000 DT MIDSTREAM 4.125% 0671529 1444 234,000 231 486 0.69%
138000 DT MIDSTREAM 4.375% 06715131 1444 138,000 136,340 0.41%

SE000 EMBECTA CORP 50000 02115730 1444 58,000 58,101 0,175
204,000 EMDURANCE ACCQUIS 6.000% 02715725 1444 195,478 181,855 0.55%
313,000 ENLINE MIDSTREA 4.15% 06701/25 259,717 312566 0.94%
171,000 EMNLINK MIDSTREA 5.625% 0171528 144a 171,000 176,498 0.57%
251371 ENQUEST PLC 0471522 EMTN (PIK) 248,010 240,067 0.72%

$0,000 EQOM MIDSTREAM PT 4.750% 0171531 1444 03,285 85,206 0,265
200,000 FAURECIA 2.750% 021527 231,700 223 466 0.67%
133,000 FERTITTA ENT LLC 6.750% 01/15730 1444 133,000 129,395 0.39%
100,000 FIDEL CLa SEGURO FXtoVa 090431 114,528 117538 0.35%

27000 FMGRES AUG2006 4.375% (401731 1444 £0,066 176 0.23%

£1,000 FORD MOTOR COMPANY 4.75% 1/ 1543 84,297 £2,841 0.25%
450,000 FORD MOTOR CRED 32500 09715/25 EMTN £42 478 45004 1.64%
184,000 FROMT RANGE BIDC 6,125% 03/01/28 1444 186,554 174,301 0.55%

74,000 FRST STU BIDCD 4.000% 0773129 1444 72411 0,222 021%
282,000 FULL HOUSE RESOR 8. 250% 02/15/28 1444 288,464 289,466 087%

95,000 GARDA SECURITY 4.625% 021527 1444 94 626 92870 0.28%
105,000 GARDA SECURITY 6.000% 0601729 1444 102,736 OR,303 0.29%
190,000 GCT LLC 4.750% 10/15/28 1444 190,033 188,057 0.56%
162,000 GEMMOTORS FIM FXtoFL PERP A 125,340 171,364 0.51%
211,000 GLOBAL NET LEASE 3.750% 12713/27 1444 211,000 3,060 0.61%

S0,000 GO DADDY OF/FIN 3.500% 03/01/29 1444 38,742 55,937 0.17%
114,000 GOODYEAR TIRE 5.250% 0430731 114,000 115,180 0.35%

=28 -

130/212



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST
U AUDITED
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022
AMORTIZED FAIR % OF
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALLE NET ASSETS
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)

TEO00 GRAY ESCROW 11 5.375% 11/15/31 1444 5 TEO00 5 75,024 0.22%
301,000 GRAY TELE INC 4.750% 10/15/30 1444 303,458 284,853 0.87%
245000 GRT WRN PTRL 12.000% 09/01/25 144 239,877 256,950 0.77%
383,000 HADRIAN MERGER 8.500% 05/01/26 1444 259,221 258 667 072
300,000 HEIMSTADEN 4.375% 03/06/27 353,893 332,688 1.00%
180,000 HEIMSTADEN BOSTA FXtoVA FERP 216,807 184,842 0.55%
200,000 HERENS HOLDICO § 4.750% 05/15/28 1444 200,000 191,411 0.57%
170,000 HERENS MIDCO 5.250% 08/15/29 REGS 204,546 173,063 0.52%

77,000 HESS MIDSTREAM 4.250% 02/15/30 1444 77,000 4,459 0.23%
132,000 HESS MIDSTREAM P 5.125% 06/15/28 1444 123,313 134,545 0.40%
232000 HLF FIN SARL LLC 4.875% 0601/29 1444 232,207 220,149 0.66%
100,000 HOUSE OF HR 7.500% 01/15/27 REGS 122910 17,173 0.35%
107,000 HOW ARD MIDSTREAM 6.750% 01/15/27 1444 107,674 109,157 0.33%
200,000 HT TROPLAST AG9.250% 07/15/25 REGS 224,280 237,185 0.71%

86,000 HUB INTL LTI} 5.625% 12/01/29 1444 56,000 84,420 0.25%
180,000 HUDBAY MINERALS 6,125% 04/01/29 1444 180,451 187,172 0.56%
100,000 ICELAND BOMDCO 4.375% 05/15/28 REGS 138,490 114,707 0.34%
100,000 ICELAND BONDICO 4.625% 03/15/25 RECGS 120,043 122,537 0.37%

o2,000 T1-VI THC 5.000% 1215729 1444 82,433 91,981 0.28%
200,000 INEOS QUATTRO FI 2.500% 01/15/26 REGs 244,474 215,154 0.65%

49,000 INGEVITY CORP 3575% 11/01/28 1444 47472 46,261 0.14%
229,000 10N TRADING TECH 5.750% 05/ 15/28 1444 233219 231573 0.69%

48,000 JAME STREET GRP 4.500% 11/15/29 1444 48,000 47,134 0.14%
157,000 JB POINDENTER & 7.125% 04/15/26 1444 165,390 163,485 0.49%
150,000 JBS USA/FOOIVEIN 5.500% 01715730 1444 162,615 159,326 0.48%

77,000 KRAFT HEINZ FOOD 4.375% 06/01/46 86016 81,660 0.24%
156000 LABL ESCROW 1SS 10.500% 07/15/27 144 147,324 160,465 0.45%
177,000 LABL INC8.250% 11/01/29 1444 176,415 169,509 0.51%
274,000 LIBERTY MEDIA §.250% 0201730 285,215 283,861 0.85%
136,000 LIFE TIME INC 5.750% 01/15/26 144A 140,527 136,578 0.41%
150,000 LIFE TIME INC 8.000% (4/15/26 1444 151,000 153,864 0.46%
192,000 LPL HOLDINGS INC 4.375% 05/15/31 144A 192,405 187,741 0.56%
211,000 LSF9 ATL/VICFIN 7.750% 02/15/26 144A 211,000 202,267 0.61%
194,000 MADISON [AQ LLC 5.875% 06/30/29 1444 197,166 175,592 0.54%4

90,000 MAGNOLIA OIL 6.000% 08/01/26 1444 58,690 92115 0.28%
100,000 MARKS & SPENCER 3,750% 05/19/26 EMTN 145,060 135,880 0.41%
100,000 MARKS & SPENCER 7.125% 12/01/37 1444 122,458 114,294 0.34%

62,000 MINERVA MERGER 6.500% 02/15/30 1444 62,000 61,868 0.19%
122,000 MODIVCARE ESCROW 5.000% 10501520 1444 122,000 118375 0.33%
337,000 MOZART DEBT ME 5.250% 1001729 144A 341,093 328,765 0.99%

54,000 MAVIENT CORP 5.500% 03/15/29 82,504 1,891 0.25%
180,000 MCR CORP 5.125% 04/15/29 144 180,000 179,950 0.54%
200,000 METFLIX INC 3.625% 05/15/27 REGS 232,965 252,757 0.76%
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION
A SERIES TRUST OF DIAM CAYMAN TRUST

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS (UNAUDITED)
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2023

AMORTIZED FAIR %% OF
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALLE NET ASSETS
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)

107,000 NEXSTAR BROADC 4.750% 11/01/28 1444 13 108,758 % 106,204 0.31%
317,000 NGL EW OP/FIN 750006 02/01/26 1444 317,000 330,392 0.96%
222000 MORDSTROM INC 5.000% 0115744 201,292 198,248 0.56%
147,000 MORTHWEST FIBER 6,000 02/15/28 1444 147,219 138,535 0.42%
26,000 MOVELIS CORP 3.875% 08715731 1444 56,000 80,970 0,24%
170,000 NOWVELIS SHEET 3.375% (4/15/29 REGS 201,127 187,513 0.56%
154,000 OCCIDENTAL PETE 3.500% 08715729 144,530 151,925 0.96%
177,000 OCCIDENTAL PETE 6.375% 090128 177000 201,613 0.60%
02000 OMEMADY FINAMCE 3,5009 01/15/27 £9,766 ET35% 0.26%
7000 OMEMAIN FINAMNCE 4.000% 0915730 83487 81,504 0.24%
200,000 ORCGAMON FIN 1 5.125% 040530031 1444 200,000 200,156 0.60%
76,000 PAPA JOHN'S INTL 38750 09/ 15/20 1444 T4, 760 71366 0.22%
240,000 PCF GMEH 4.750% 04/15/26 REGS 287,280 268,504 081%
02000 PECF USS [NTERME 8.000% 11/15/29 1444 92000 93,050 0.28%
120,000 PICARD GROUPE 387556 07/01/26 RECS 213,462 195,200 0.60%
200,000 PINNACLE BIDCO P 6.375% 02115725 REGS 227,390 270,393 0.81%
202000 POLAR US BORROW 6.750% 05/15/26 1444 102,000 193,174 0.58%
55,000 POST HOLDINGS TN 4.500% 0915731 1444 £2,558 50,995 0.24%
255000 PREMIER ENTERTAI 5.625% 09/01/20 1444, 252,065 240,107 0.77%
255000 PREMIER EMTERTAD S.875% 0901731 1444 252,614 240,647 0.72%
155,000 QUICKEM LOANS 38759 03/01731 1444 152,065 145,397 0445
63,000 RACKSPACE TECH 35000 0/15728 1444 61,225 SE916 0.15%
27000 RANGE RESOURCES 4.750% 02/15/30 1444 27,000 27074 0085
17000 REALOGY GRP / C0 5.750% 01/ 15/29 1444 119,258 115,032 0.34%
130,000 REMEW ABLE MRG 5.875% D&/01/28 144a 144,045 139,658 0.47%
215,000 REMT-A-CENTER 6.375% 02/ 15/29 1444 220,978 121,262 0.66%.
197,000 ROCKET SOFTW ARE 6.5% (215120 144A 157,000 186,961 0.56%
37000 ROCKIES EXPRESS 4.950% 07/15/29 1444 38,524 38,060 011%
114,000 RYANSPECIALTY G4.375% 02/01/30 1444 114,173 113,28% 0.34%
00,000 SAMHALLSEYGS FXioVA PERP 240,673 213,868 0.64%
300,000 SCHAFFFLER AG3.375% 1001228 EMTN 398,508 365,502 1.10%
100,000 SCIL IV LLC/ SC 4.375% 11/00/26 REGS 116,450 111,960 0.34%
22,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW 3.875% 01/ 15/29 1444 21,168 0935 0.06%
150,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW 5.375% 01/15/31 1444 150,199 148,845 0.45%
79,000 SCRIPPS ESCROW 58755 07/15/27 1444 20,926 B0,680 0.24%
121,000 SEAGATE HDD CAYM 3.375% 07715731 115,706 112,551 0.34%
TRO00 SEAGATE HDD CAYM 4.125% 0171531 T 615 75,665 0.33%
4,000 SERVICE CORP 3.375% 08/15/30 23,194 2448 0.07%
49,000 SERVICE CORP 4.000%% 05/15/31 45,878 47,553 0.14%
133,000 SHEA HOMES 4.750% 04/01/29 1444 134,381 130,818 0.39%
169,000 SIRIUS XM RADIO 40000 0771528 1444 169,000 163,085 0.49%
0,000 SOUTHWESTERN EME 4.750% 02701/32 90,509 90,260 0.27%

107,000 SOUTHWESTERN ENE 5.375% 03/15/30 107,000 109,798 0.33%
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GLOBAL HIGH YIELD BOND FUND CURRENCY SELECTION

PFPLE! 1
YEAR ENDED JANUARY 31, 2022
AMORTIZED FAIR = OF
QUANTITY SECURITY DESCRIPTION COST VALLE NET ASSETS
CORPORATE BONDS (CONTINUED)

44,000 SPRIMGLEAF FIM 5.375% 11/15/29 % 28,112 5 248,119 0,74%
90,000 SOUARE TNC 3.500% 06/01/31 1444 0,085 5,774 0.26%
40,000 SRS DISTRIBUTION 6.000% 12/001/29 1444 50,000 57,306 0.17%
49,000 SRS DISTRIBUTION 6.125% 0701/ 23 1444 50,655 48,081 0, 14%

271,000 STANDARD INDS TN 3.375% 01715/31 1444 261,012 248 464 0.75%
70,000 STICHTING PERE 114,097 101,375 0.30%

176,000 SUNOCO LP/FIN 4.500%6 04730730 1444 176,000 173,143 0.52%
72,000 SURGERY CENTER 6.750% 07/01/25 1444 64,713 72,183 0.22%

126,000 SYNEOS HEALTH IN 3.625% 01/15/29 1444 122413 118,518 0.36%
$5000 TALLGRASS NRG 5.500% 011528 1444 8,000 84329 0.25%

128,000 TALLGRASS NRGS.000% 030127 1444 126,196 129610 0.35%

200,000 TELECOM ITALLA 1.625% 0118/ 29 EMTN 206,752 205 889 0.62%

103,000 TENET HEALTHCARE 6.125% 10/01/28 1444 104,330 103,333 0.31%

150,000 TERRAFORM POWER 4.750% 01/ 15730 1444 184511 181,192 0.54%

300,000 TEVA FHARM FNC 45008 03/01/25 333,600 341,427 1.02%

114,000 TEVA PHARMACEUT 6.150% 02/01/36 123,508 116,221 0.35%

100,000 TEVA PHARMACELTE 3,758 05/09/27 115,800 108,704 0.33%

00,000 TEVA PHARMACEUTE 4.375% 08709730 231,600 214,355 0.64%

F20,000 TI AUTOMOTIVE 3.750% 04/ 1529 REGS 261,580 243,092 0.73%

200,000 TOTALPLAY 6.375% 09/2V/28 REGS 200,000 186,818 01,565

216,000 TRAMSDIGM INC 4.875% 05/01/29 Wi 215,649 W7,727 0.62%

182,000 TUTOR PERINI CRP 6.875% 05/01/25 1444 182,667 180,635 0.54%

00,000 UBS GROUP 487504 0871227 REGS 200,000 199978 0.60%

131,000 UNITED CONT HLDG 4.875% 0171525 128,890 131,932 040%

221,000 UNITE/ CSL 6.500% 02/ 15/20 1444 123,793 209,355 0.63%

100,000 VERISURE MIDHOLD 5.250% 02/15/29 REGS 120,630 110,544 0.33%

260,000 VICTORIA PLC 3.750% 03/15/28 018,584 IRT T4 0.86%

162,000 WATCO COS LLOF 6.500% 061527 1444, 162,000 167,095 0.50%

145,000 WENDY'S INTL 70008 12/15/25 152,176 163,249 0.45%
70,000 WESTERM GAS PAR 5.45% 04001744 75475 77,452 0.23%

134,000 WESTERN GAS PART 5.050% 02101/30 123,755 140,582 0.42%

140,000 WINDSTREAM ESCRO 7.750% 081528 1444 138,430 140,798 042%

160,000 WP/AP TELECOM 5.500% 01/15/30 REGs 180,575 175,748 0529
2000 WRGRACE HOLDING 4.575% 06/15/27 144a 22,061 21,917 0.07%

000 WW INTERNATIONAL 4,500% 04/15/29 1444 106,540 96, 568 0.29%

212,000 WYNDHAM TNC 6.625% 07/31/26 1444 3279 126,623 06855
18,000 21 TECH/ZI FIN 3.875% 02701/29 1448 17,028 16,969 0.05%

263,000 ZIGGO 51255 0228730 144a 265,764 251,610 0.755%

32,994,514 32,182,949 96.50%
TOTAL VALUE OF INVES TMENTS b3 33,468,742 32,631,208 97.85%
OTHER ASSETS, NET OF LIABILITIES 717622 215%
NET ASSETS 3 33,348,830 100.00%

=3 =
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2022

29,192,117 3,742,721,321
214,035 27,441,427
3,892,750 499,089,478
5,331,463 683,546,871
1,428,395 183,134,523
25,544,292 2,348,797,649

26,241

496,606

71,753

761,766
148.35 19,020
10.74 1,377
19.91 2,553
33.54 3,084
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2022 2,000,000 5,642
10,000,000 2,000,000
2022 5,361,137 8,735
One
2022 24 340

500
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131

23 103

2022 31
128.21
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020

7,747,717 993,335 9,684,838 1,241,693
416,812 53,439 1,099,270 140,937
599,076 76,808 443,517 56,863
12,287 1,575 13,124 1,683
56,793 7,281 62,528 8,017
8,832,685 1,132,439 11,303,277 1,449,193
136,966 17,560 156,560 20,073
8,969,651 1,149,999 11,459,837 1,469,266
3,183,319 408,133 5,452,331 699,043
434,514 55,709 506,225 64,903
364,045 46,674 245,611 31,490
3,981,878 510,517 6,204,167 795,436
2,000,000 256,420 2,000,000 256,420
2,987,773 383,062 3,255,670 417,409
4,987,773 639,482 5,255,670 673,829
8,969,651 1,149,999 11,459,837 1,469,266
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
41,671 5,343 63,993 8,205
386 49
41,671 5,343 63,607 8,155
4,697,515 602,268 4,572,825 586,282
221,622 28,414 244,788 31,384
38,400 4,923 38,400 4,923
4,957,537 635,606 4,856,013 622,589
4,999,208 640,948 4,919,620 630,744
10 2,646,420 339,298 2,643,805 338,962
1,006,565 129,052 1,018,357 130,564
361,491 46,347 361,491 46,347
42,629 5,465 47,053 6,033
10,000 1,282
4,067,105 521,444 4,070,706 521,905
932,103 119,505 848,914 108,839
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2021 2020 12 31
2,000,000 256,420 2,406,756 308,570 4,406,756 564,990
848,914 108,839 848,914 108,839
2,000,000 256,420 3,255,670 417,409 5,255,670 673,829
932,103 119,505 932,103 119,505
(1,200,000) (153,852) (1,200,000) (153,852)
2,000,000 256,420 2,987,773 383,062 4,987,773 639,482
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
932,103 119,505 848,914 108,839
42,629 5,465 47,053 6,033
974,732 124,970 895,967 114,872
682,458 87,498 (47,051) (6,032)
(155,559) (19,944) 48,332 6,197
837 107 (6,686) (857)
5,735 735 12,704 1,629
(2,269,012) (290,910) (1,473,722) (188,946)
(71,711) (9,194) 27,467 3,522
118,434 15,184 11,848 1,519
(714,086) (91,553) (531,141) (68,098)
(23,035) (2,953) (26,100) (3,346)

(1,200,000) (153,852)

(1,937,121) (248,358) (557,241) (71,444)
9,684,838 1,241,693 10,242,079 1,313,137
7,747,717 993,335 9,684,838 1,241,693

749 9%
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2021 2020 12 31

1990 15

2009 2014
2014

2031
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15

2021 2020 12 31
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IFRS 2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020 12 31

16 12
2021 2020 12 31

12
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2021 2020
3,247,717 4,184,838
4,500,000 5,500,000
7,747,717 9,684,838
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
469,711 310,757
129,365 132,760
599,076 443,517
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91

181

360

180

360

2021 2020
25,716 1,560
75,730 52,100
76,634 63,427

178,080 117,087

2021 2020

(10, 000)
10,000
2021 2020
3,183,319 5,452,331
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2019 12 31 741,880 372,854 1,114,734
26,100 26,100
2020 12 31 767,980 372,854 1,140,834
23,035 23,035
2021 12 31 791,015 372,854 1,163,869
2019 12 31 657,498 279,723 937,221
25,169 21,884 47,053
2020 12 31 682,667 301,607 984,274
26,243 16,386 42,629
2021 12 31 708,910 317,993 1,026,903
2020 12 31 85,313 71,247 156,560
2021 12 31 82,105 54,861 136,966
2021 2020
10,000,000
2,000,000 2020 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
2021 12 31
1,200,000 2020

Tilly Nominees Limited Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Nominees Limited Tilly Directors Limited Tilly

1471212
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Tilly Nominees Limited
Coultry Directors Ltd
Tilly Directors Limited

Tilly Secretaries Limited

2021 12 31

12 31

12 31

143,920

2020

975,610

143,660

148/212

2021 2020

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

2020 975,610
2021 2020
416,812 1,099,270
987 477
760,884 618,720
3,932 8,544
238,600 238,600
25,000 25,000
361,491 361,491
2011 31
2021 12 31

Nominee
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2021 12 31
2020
10
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47.76 2020 41
2021 2020
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2021
2020 12 31
2021
0.01 0.05 3,247,717 4,500,000 7,747,717
5.26 416,812 416,812
599,076 599,076
12,287 12,287
4,275,892 4,500,000 8,775,892
0.005 0.01 3,183,319 3,183,319
434,514 434,514
3,617,833 3,617,833
658,059 4,500,000 5,158,059
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2020
0.01  0.15 4,184,838 5,500,000 9,684,838
5.26 1,099,270 1,099,270
443,517 443,517
13,124 13,124
5,740,749 5,500,000 11,240,749
0.004  0.005 5,452,331 5,452,331
506,225 506,225
5,958,556 5,958,556
(217,807) 5,500,000 5,282,193
2021 12 31 30 2020 30
1,444 2020 505
30 2020 30
30 1,444 2020 505
2021 12 31 30 2020 30
13,500 2020 16,500
30 2020 30
30 13,500 2020 16,500
2021 2020 12 31 30
2020
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2021

2020

12

13

14

2020 12 31

5,456

2021

2021

2022
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2021 2020 12 31
54,556 54,556
56,638 (1,445) 55,193
10 2021 12 31
2020 5,519
2020
15
2020 12 31
400,000 500,000
2020 12 31
22
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

2021 2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Casgh and cash equivalents (MNate 3) $ TTATTT $ 0684838
Due from clients (Naote 8) 416,812 1,009,270
Cliant accounts receivable (Mote 4) 599,076 443 517
Other receivables 12,287 13,124
Prepaid expenses 56,793 62,528
8,832,685 11,303,277
MOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets (Note &) 136,966 156,560
$ 8,969,651 £ 11,459,837
ILITIES AND SHA ER' ITY
LIABILITIES
Depositors' accounts (Notes 5 and 9) $ 3183219 § 5452331
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note ) 434 514 506,225
Fees received in advance 364,045 245611
3,981,878 6,204 167
SEHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital (Mote 7) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Retained eamings __ 20887TT3 3,255 870
4,887,773 5255 670
$ 8,969,651 § 11,459,837

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

INTEREST INCOME
INTEREST EXPENSE
MNET INTEREST INCOME

OTHER INCOME
Directorship, trustee and management fees (Naote 8)
Miscellaneous
Rental income

TOTAL INCOME

COPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits (Note 10)
Administration (Note %)
Rent expense (Note 8}
Depreciation (Mota §)
Expected credit loss (Mole 4)

MNET INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Ei‘l 2020

$ 41,671 5 63,993
- 386

41,671 63 607
4,697,515 4,572,825
221,622 244 788
38,400 38 400
4,957,537 4,855,013
4,999,208 4,819,620
2,848 420 2 643 BOS
1,006,565 1,018,357
361,491 361,491
42,629 47,053

10,000 .
4,067,105 4,070,706

5 932103 5  sdegn4

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars)

Total

Retained shareholder's

Share capital eamings equity

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 2000000 F 2406756 § 4406758
Met income and comprehensive income - B48 014 848,914
Dividends {Nate T) = = =
Balance at December 31, 2020 2,000,000 3,255,670 5,255,670
Met income and comprehensive income - 832,103 932,103
Dividends (Note 7) - (1,200,000) (1,200,000
Balance at December 31, 2021 § 2000000 $ 2887773 § 4987773

See noles lo consolidated financial staterments
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020
fexpressed in United Stales dollars)

2021 2020
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN):
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met income and comprehensive income % 932,103 5 848,014
Adjisstments for tems not affecting cash:
Depreciation 42,629 47,053
974,732 B25 987
Changes in operaling assets and habilities:
Due from clients 6B2.458 (47051}
Client accounts receivable {155,559) 48332
Other receivables B37 (6.686)
Prepaid expenses 5,735 12,704
Depositors” accounts (2,269.012) {1,473,722)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (T1,711) 27 ABT
Fees received in advance 118,434 11,848
(714,086) {531,141}
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assels (23,035) {26,100)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (1,200,000) -
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,937,121) {557 ,241)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 9,684,638 10.242.079
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 7477 % §.6B4.B38
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for inferest 5 - b 749
Sea noles to consolidated Fnancial statements
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars)

1. THE COMPANY ANDITS PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Lid. (the "Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands on June 15, 1990 as Queensgate Bank & Trust Company Lid, ("QBTC") and is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Queensgate Group Lid. (the *Parent”), a company also incorporated in the
Cayman |slands.

On January 2, 2008, QBTC undertook a restructuring in order to separate the banking activities from
the trust activities. Subsequently, on January 1, 2014, the Company undertcok a merger to re-combine
the bank and the trust activities, On January 2, 2014, the Company changed its name to Queensgate
Bank and Trust Company Lid. The newly named company continued as the entity formerly named
Queensgate Trust Company Lid. and is licensed with a Class B Banking license, a Trust Company
icense and Mulual Fund Administration license with the Cayman Istands Monetary Authonty ("CIMA™).

The Company has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands Government exempling it from all

local income, profits and capital gains taxes until February 1, 2031, Mo such taxes exist in the Cayman
Islands at the present ime,

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS") and reflect the following policies:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidianes. Control is achieved when the Company:

+ has power over the investee;
+ s exposed, or has nghts, to varable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
+ has the ability to use its power to affect its retums.

The Company reassesses whether of not it controls an investee il facts and circumslances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control isted above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases
whan the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, incorme and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains confrol until the date when the Company ceases to control
the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany fransactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation, Refer to
Mate & for other disclosures relating to the subsidiaries,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Use of estimates

Financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS require management to make estimates and
azsumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and Babilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and Eabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense
during the reporting perod, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalens include cash and short-term deposits with an onginal matunty of three
months ar less.

Due from clients

Due from clients are temporary overdrafts given to clients for which the carrying value approximates
fair value as such amounts bear interest at variable rates, Due from clients are recorded net of a
provision for expected credit losses.

Client accounts receivable and allowance for doubtful accounts

Client accounts receivable includes fee income receivables generatled from the Company's
directorship, trustee and management fees and receivables for disbursements made on behalf of
clents. Fee income receivables are stated net of a provision Tor expected credit losses, Receivables
for disbursements made on behall of cients do not have a related provision for expected credit losses
as these balances typically represent unbilled disbursements that the Company expects (o recover
once billad.

The provision for expected credit losses is established by charges to income based on the expected
credif losses in receivable balances, These are based upon management’s knowledge of the current
condition of the Company’s clients.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fixed assets

Fixed assels are stated at cost less accumulated depredation. Depreciation is calculated using the
straight-line method and is based on the estimated lives as follows:

Furniture and computer equipment 3to 15 years
Motor vehicles 8 years

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its fixed assels 1o
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (f any). For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has
ned identified any assels for which an impairment loss was recorded.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for all interest beaning instruments on an accrual basis using the effective yvield method.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue from the following sources:

« directorship, trustee, management and cther similar services provided to clients,

+ miscellaneous services provided to clients and disbursement charges for services provided to
clents in connection with the directorship, trustee and management services being pravided,
and

= rental income for use of its office space.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration thal the Company is conltracted to receive from ils
chents and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenues
on an accrual basis as performance obligations are satisfied.

The primary source of revenue for the Company is from the provision of directorship, trustee,
management, and registered office services to its chents. For these services, the Company recognises
revenues over the contracted penod of service which coincides with a calendar year. Where multiple

senvices are provided o a single client, the revenues generated from each lype of service are
recognised separately.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)
Revenue recognition (confinued)

tiscellansous income includes disbursement fees charged to clients for the Company's cverhead and
fees charged to clients for miscellaneous senvices such as copy senvices for meetings or courier costs.
Desbursement fee revenue is charged based on a percentage of the contracted revenue for directorship,
trustee, management and other similar services and is recognised in the same pattern as the revenues
for those services. Fees charged to dients for miscellaneous sernvices are recognised in revenue at the
point in time in which they are provided.

The Company records rental income from leasing out their office space to third parties. The rental
income is earned and recognised on a month to month basis and is not based on & contract.

Foreign currency transiation

The Company’s presantation currency is the United States dollar. Assets and liabilities denominated or
accounted for in currencies other than United States dollars have been translated info United States
dollars at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date. Forelgn curmency
transactions and income and expense items have been translated at the exchange rates existing at the
time of the transaction. Gains and losses ansing from transkation are included in the consolidated
slaternents of comprehensive income.

Assetls under administration

Securnities, cash and other assets held on behalf of clients in a trust, agency or Bduciary capadity are not
incheded in these consolidated financial statements as such assets are not the property of the Company.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilties are recognised in the Company’s statemeant of financial position
when the Company becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument, Finangal assets
and financial iabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost
or subsequently measured at fair value depending on their cash flow characterstics. Due to the short
term nature of the financial assels and abiliies held by the Company, carrying value approximates fair
value,

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
of it transfers the fnancial asset and substantially all of the feks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to anather entity. Financial Rabilities are derecognised when tha Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or they expire,

With IFRS 9, the principle applied for the impairment of accounts receivable is based on expected credit
losses. No provision for expected credit losses was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2021
and 2020,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)

Fiduciary activities

The Company, in its fiduciary capacity, may be a party to Btigation and claims in the narmal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which i= based on the advice from the Company’s [awyers,
no provisions are required at December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, a lessee recognizes assets and Babilities for all lease arangements unless the
termis 12 months or less o the underlying asset has a low value, Due o the short term nature of the one
lease contract (Mote 9) existing as at and during the years ended Decemnber 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Company has recorded the month to month lease costs as rent expense on the consolidated statements
of carmprehansive income.

New and revised IFRS standards in izsue but not yet effective

The Company has reviewed the IFRS standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and
has concluded that they will not have a material impact on the financial statements in future pericds.

Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainfy

The Company makes estimales and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of assets and labilities.
Estimates are continually evaluated and based on histonical experence and other factors including
expectations of fulure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the crcumstances. The key areas
of judgemeant or estimaticn are with regard to the expected useful economic lives of fixed assets as well
as the recoverability of client accounts recervable frorm clients and due from clients, The expected useful
economic ves of fived assels are based on prior experence of similar assats, Chent accounts receivable
and due from cients are measured as either a 12 month or lifetime ECL based on credit risk
considerations,

3. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2 __ 2020
Call deposits s 3247717 § 4184838
Short-term fixed deposits 4,500,000 5,500,000
$  774TTT s 9884838

Shaort-term fixed deposits as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 mature within three months fromthe ariginal
issued date.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

4, CLIENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Amounts receivable in respect of fee income eamed by the Company or disbursements made on behalf
of clients are comprised as follows:

_—2er 2020

Fee Income recalvablas s 469,711 -1 310,757
Receivables for disbursements made on behalf of clients 129,365 132,760
Less: provision for expected credil losses = -

5 590,076 5 443,517

Fee income recaivables include amounts that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Company has not recognised a provesion for expected credit loszes as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable. In determining the
recoverability of the fee income receivables, the Company considers any change in the credit quality
of the receivables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period.

Age of fee income receivables that are past due but not impaired
— 2 — 2030

81 to 180 days 5 25,718 ] 1,560
181 to 360 days 75730 52,100
Cwver 360 days 76,634 83,427
Total - past due but nat impaired 5 178,080 5 117,087

Mowvaments in the provision for expected credit losses were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance at beginning of year 5 - -3 -
Impairment losses reversed - -
Amounts writlen off during the year as uncollectible {10.000) -
Increase in provision 10,000 -
Balance at end of year g - H -

To reduce exposure 1o credit risk, the Company reviews the credit quality of its customers and defines
credit imits as part of its onboarding process. Credit quality and limets of the receivables portfolio are
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

5. DEPOSITORS' ACCOUNTS

Depositors’ accounts are classified as follows:

2021 2020
Call deposits $ 3,183,318 § 545233
6. FIXED ASSETS
Furniture and
computer

equIprment Matar vehicles Tetal
Cost:
Balance at Decernber 31, 2019 S 741,880 % 3F2Bsd % 1,114,734
Additions 25,100 - 26,100
Disposals - a -
Balance at December 31, 2020 TET.980 72554 1,140,834
Additions 23,035 - 23,035
Balanee at December 31, 2021 791,015 372,854 1,163 568
Balance at December 31, 2019 657,498 279,723 937,221
Depraciation expanse 25,169 21,884 47,053
Dispesals - - =
Balance at December 31, 2020 682 667 301,607 B84, 274
Deprecialion expense 25,243 16,388 42 B29
Balance at December 31, 2021 708,910 317,983 1,026,803
Met book value, December 31, 2020 3 85313 § 71,247 § 156,560
Net book value, December 31, 2021 b B2105 § 54851 35 136,965
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

7. SHARE CAPITAL

futhorized;

10,000,000 Ordinary voting shares of $1 par value each

|ssued;

2,000,000 Ordinary voling shares (2020: 2,000,000) $ 2,000,000 2,000,000

The Directors may declare dividends and distributions on shares in issue and authorise payment of the
dividends or distributions out of the funds of the Company. Mo dividend or distibution shall be paid
except oul of the realised or unrealised profits of the Company. For the year ended December 31,
2021, a dividend of 51,200,000 was declared and paid (2020c § nil). The nights conferred upon the
holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, unkess otherwise
expressly provided by the terms of issue of the shares of that class, be deemed to be vaned by tha
creation orf issue of further shares ranking pan passu therswith.

8. SUBSIDIARIES

The consoidated financial statements inclede the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, Tilly Mominees Limited and Coultry Directors Lid., and Tilly Nominees Limited, in turn, is
parent to two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tilly Directors Limited and Tilly Secretaries Limited {collectively,
the “Subsidiaries”). Al of the subsidiaries listed below are licensed as Nominee (Trust) Companies with

CInA,
Place of Propartion of ownership
Principal incorporation inlerest and voting power
Name of subsidiany activity and aperation held by the Company
2021 2020
Provide nominse
Tilty Nominees Limited  shareholder services Cayman |slands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Coultry Directors Lid director services  Cayman |slands 100% 100%
Provide corporate
Tilly Directors Limited director services Cayman Islands 100% 100%
Provide company
Tilly Secretanes Limited secretary services  Cayman Islands 100% 100%

The Company has not provided financial support to its Subsidiaries during the year, nor does it intend to
provide financial or other support. There are no significant restrictions on the Company's ability to access
or use assets or settle kabilities of the Subskdiaries.

As of December 31, 2021, guarantees in the total amount of $57%,610 (2020: $97%,610) have beenissued
by the Company to the Government of the Cayman Iskands on behalf of its Subsidiaries.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following related party balances and

transachons:
S} 4 200
As of December 31;
Due from clients 416,812 1,089,270
Client acocounis receivable a87 477
Depositors’ accounts 750,884 618,720
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3932 8,544
Directarship, trustee and management fees 238,600 238,600
Directors’ fees (included in Administration expenses) 25,000 25,000
Rent expense 361,481 361,491

All transactions with related parties are conducted on normal commercial terms and at non-preferential
interest rates.

Certain employees of the Company and certain assets of the Company are also ulilised by the Parent
for its angoing operations. The employees’ services and use of the assets is currently not recharged to
thie Parent and is not separately quantifiable.

Seme of the Company's employees are also providing directorship services to a number of cients who
have deposits and overdrafts with the Company.

The Company leases office space from a related parfy. The annual lease expired on
August 31, 2011, The Company is curmrently leasing the space on a manth to month basis based on
the prior lease agreement.

10. PENSION PLAN

The Company has a defined confribution pension scheme in place for all of its qualifying employees.
Caontributions are calculated as a percentage of salary based on the prescribed maximum of 5% and
are matched by the Company. The Company pays the employees' portion, The total pension cost
recognised during the year ended December 31, 2021 was 5143920 (2020: 5143 .650) and is included
in salaries and benefits in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

A financial instnement is a contract that gives rise to a financial #sset of one entity and a financial Bability
of another entity, The Company anters into contracts involving financial instruments during the nommal
course of its business.

Risk exposures arising from financial instruments are monitored by management. The main risks
arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit and counterparty risk, liquidity risk, market
risk, interest rate risk and cumency risk. The exposure to. and management of, these risks is
summarnsed below. The year-end figures reperted in these consolidated financial statements for
fimnancial instruments are reflective of the position held throughout the year and are consistent with the
objectives, policies and strategies approved by management.

Credit and counterparty risk

Credit and counterparty risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Financial instruments which potentially expose
the Company 1o credit and counterparty risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, due from
clents and client accounts receivable.

The Campany manages its expaosure (o credit and counterparty risk by placing cash and fived deposils
with a regulated financial institution in the Cayman Islands, only taking referred business, and
monitoring outstanding receivable balances, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has a concenfration risk with all cash and cash equivalents being held by cne financial
institution in the Cayman lslands.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, approximately 47 76% (2020 41%) of the Company’s
directorship, trustes and management fees were earmed from its three (2020: three) largest cuslomerns.
Mo other customers contribuled more than 10% to the Company's directorship, trustee and
management fees during 2021 or 2020,

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Campany will encounter difficully in meeting chligations assodated with
financial iabilities.

The Company's objective is to maintain depositors’ accounts which hawve a range of maturities
consistent with its asset base. Liquidity rrsk s monftored by the Company's managemeant to ensuna
that the Company has sufficient liquid assets to be able to meet its future expected cash outllows. The
Company endeavors to match the terms of its iabiities and assats, primarily cash and cash equivalents,
fixed deposits and the depositors’ accounts, and maintains a significant proportion of its assets in cash
in order to manage iquidity nsk. Refer to interest rate risk table disclosures for analysis of liquidity gap.

Market risk
Market nisk iz the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices. Market risk for the Company comprises inferest rate risk and
currency sk,
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stales dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fek is the fsk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a inandal instrurment will luctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by ensuning that the interest rate on assats (Le. cash and
due from clients) equals or exceeds that of the relevant offsetting liability {j.e. depositors’ accounts).
The tables below summarise this matching as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. Items are allocated fo
time bands by reference to the earlier of the next interes! rate re-pricing date and the malurity date.

20215
EMective
Interest
Rate Less than Greater than
or Range (%] __ On demand 3 months 3 months Total
Monetary Assats:
Cash and cash equivalants 0oi-005 § 3247717 § 4500000 § - § TrY T
D from chants 5248 416,812 - - 418,812
Cliant sccounts recelvable - 589,078 - - 559,078
Cther recatvables - 12,287 - - 12,287
5 4275B82 % 4500 £ - 5 _aTissm
Monetary Liabllities:
Deposiicrs’ accounts 0005001 § 3183319 § - § - § 3i@338
Accounts payable and sccrued
LT - 434 514 = - 434 514
§ 36I7TEI3 3§ - 5 - § 3617833
Sansitivity/liquidity gap § 6G5A058 § 4800000 % - 3 5158059
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MANAGEMENT (cortinued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
2020:
Effactive
Interest
Rata Less than  Groater than
_of Rengs (%) _ On demand 3 months 3 mionths Total
Monatary Assots:
Cash and cash equivabents 00015 § 4184838 5 5500000 S - § G684838
Dree from clents 526 1,089,270 - - 1,098,270
Cliant accounls recehvabis = 43 517 = 43 517
Other recahables - 13,124 - 13,124
5 5740743 5 5500000 5 - 5 11240749
Monetary Liabilities:
Deposion’ accouris Q4-0.005 3 5452331 5 - 3 - § 5452331
Accounts payable and acered
5 _spsssss § . 8 - §_59sesss
Sansitivitylliquidity gap $  (2I7B0T) 5 5500000 S - 5 52782103

The Company iz exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in prevailing levels of fixed
and floating interest rates on its cash flows.,

At Decemnber 31, 2021, with respect to the floating rate exposure, if market interest rates had beaen 30
{2020: 30} basis poinis higher with all other vaniables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
been 51.444 lower (2020: 5505 lower). If market interest rates had been 30 (2020; 30) basis points
lowrer with all other variables held constant, shareholder’s equity would have increased by less than
51,444 (2020; would have increased by less than $505) due to the fact that certain account balances
eamn interest at a rate lower than 20 basis points.

At December 31, 2021, with respect to the fived rate exposure, if market interest rates had been 30
{2020; 30) basis points higher with all other variables held constant, shareholder's equity would have
bean $13 500 higher (2020: $16,500 higher). If market interest rates had been 30 (2020: 30) basis
points lower with all other vanables held constant, shareholder's equity would have decreased by less
than 513,500 (2020: would have decreased by less than $16 500} due to the fact that certain account
balances earn interest at a rate lower than 20 basis points.

This analysis is based on interest bearing instruments held at year-end, and assumes the change in
interest rates took place at the beginning of the year and the interest bearing instruments were held
constant throughout the reporting parod. Thirty basis points is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment
of the pessible change in market rates for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Page 18
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates.

The Company operates in the Cayman Islands, and mainly holds instruments with net exposures to the
fellowing currencies: Great Batain pound and Cayman Islands dellar (2020: Great Britain pound and
Cayman |slands dollar). Since the Company prepares its financial statements in United States dollars,
the Company’s consolidated statements of financial posiion are affected by movements in the
exchange rate of the Great Britain pound and the United States daollar, The Cayman Islands dollar has
a foced exchange rate against the United States dollar. Translation gainsfosses arnsing from these
exposures are reported net in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The table below shows the Company's cummency exposures being those transactional exposures that
give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Such exposures comprise the monetary liabilities of the Company that are not
denominated in either the presentation currency or a currency with a fixed rate of exchange to the
presentation cumency of the Company. To manage its currency risk, the Company may approximate
net foreign currency assets and liabilities against each other. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
these exposures were as lollows:

Significant net foreian currency monetary assets, December 31, 2021 and 2020 (ranslated into United

States dollars):
20215
Met foreign
Cash and cash Deposilors’  currency monelary
equivalents accounts Bssels
GBP 3 S4.556 5 - 5 54,556
Page 19
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QUEENSGATE BANK AND TRUST COMPANY LTD.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

fexpressed in Unifed Stafes dollars) (continued)

11. RISK MAMAGEMENT {continued)

Currency risk (continued)
2020:
Met foreign
Cash and cash Depositors’ curmency monetary
aquivalents AcCounls ALLANE
GBP 3 i {1,445) § 55,193

Had the United States dollar been stronger or weaker by 10% against the relevant foreign currencies
with all other vanables held constant, the net result for the year ended December 21, 2021 would
decrease of increase by 85 456 (2020: 55519).

12. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its captal lo ensure thal the Company will be able o conlinue as a going
concern while maximising the retumn to the shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2020,

The capital structure of the Company congists of issued Ordinary vating shares and retained earmings.
13. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company is subject to requlatory capital requirements established by CIMA.  Failure to meet
mirgmum capital requirements can initiate cerain actions by the regulator that, if undertaken, could
have a direct matenal effect on the Company's consolidated finandal statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines used by CIMA and prescribed under The Banks and Trust Comparnies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that invelve quantitative measures
of the Company's assets, liabillies, and certain off-balance sheat items as calculated under regulatony
accounting practices. The Company’s capital amaounts and classification are also subject to qualitative
Judgments by CIMA about components and nzk weightings.

The Company is required at all irmes to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of at least 15% according to
current regulation and the provisions of its Banking lcense. The Company Is in compliance with this
requiremeant as at and for the years ended December 21, 2021 and 2020.

Under the terms of its licenses, the Company s required o maintain a minimum net worth of

KYD400,000 (LUS5500,0000. The Company is in compiance with this requirement as at and for the
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,

14. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by a committee of the Board of Cirectors and
authorised for issue on March 22, 2022,

Page 20
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2022 2,592 33
1965
2021 12 1,440,000,000 1,846
1987 10 22
2022 20
2021 12 105,000,000 135
L-5365 1B
2021 12 1,440,000,000 1,846
1987 10 22
One
2022 20
us
2022 2,909 935
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Independent auditor’s report

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
not in its individual capacity but solely as Trustee of Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection, a
series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Global High Yield Bond Fund Currency Selection (the Class Fund), a series trust of DIAM Cayman Trust
as at January 31, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

What we have audited
The Class Fund'’s financial statements comprise:
the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2022;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;
the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders for the year then ended;
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Class Fund in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the supplementary
schedule of investments (unaudited), (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

206/212



EDINETOOOO
OO000oO00ooOo0obDo00O00o0O00DbOO000DO00On(e25766)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Class Fund's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Class Fund or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Class Fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Class Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Class Fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Class Fund in accordance with
the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

July 15, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR*S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Queensgate Bank and Trust Company Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (the "Company'), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholder®s equity and cash flows for the years then ended (all expressed in United States Dollars),
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial
performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting fromerror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management”s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor”s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
March 22, 2022
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